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D D R 
DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Mayor, Mayor Pro Temp 
And the Members of the City Council 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana 
(the City), as of and for the year then ended May 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana, as of May 31, 2024, and the respective changes 
in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required 
to be independent of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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.4uditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectn es are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generallv accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standiwds will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
intluence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the tinancial statements. 

In perairming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards. we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropnate in the circumstances, but not fim the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judiunent, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial douht about the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, budgetary comparison schedules on pages 59-62, schedule of 
changes in net opeb liability and related ratios on page 63, schedule of proportionate share of the net pension 
liability on page 64, schedule of pension contributions on page 65, and notes to the schedule of proportionate 
share of the net pension liability and schedule of pension contributions on page 66 he presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 
to be an essential part of tinancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the inforniation and 
comparing the infbrmation for consistency with management's responses to our inquines, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements We do not 



express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The schedule of per diem paid, schedule of compensation, 
benefits, and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer, and justice system funding schedule-
collecting/disbursing entity are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of per diem paid, schedule of 
compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer, and justice system 
funding schedule-collecting/disbursing entity are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 25, 2024 on 
our consideration of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

October 25, 2024 
Gonzales, Louisiana 

3 



CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2024 

This section of City's annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the City's financial 
performance dunng the fiscal year that ended on May 31. 2024. This document focuses on the current year's 
activities. resulting changes. and currently known facts in comparison with the prior year's information (where 
available). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The City's combined total net position increased by $5,029,123 or 5 5 percent over the course of this 
year's operations. Net posihon of the governmental activities increased approximately $3.2 million and 
approximately S1.9 million of the business-type activities. 

• During the year, the City's governmental activities expenses were approximately $3.2 million less than 
the S30 million generated in charges for services, taxes, grants and contributions, and other reverme. In 
the City's business-type activities, expenses were approximately $1.9 million less than the $11.5 
nnllion generated in charges for services and general revenues. 

• General Fund reported a decrease in fund balance of $834,542, Capital Projects Fund reported an 
increase in fund balance of $53.554, Tanger Mall EDD reported a decrease of S2.897,984, Conway 
EDD reported a decrease of $352,172, and PACE Center EDD reported a decrease of $1.648,635 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of four parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section). the basic 
financial statements, required supplementary information, and other supplementary information. The basic 
financial statements include three kinds of statements that present different views of the City: 

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the City's overall financial status. 

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City's 
gm eminent. reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 

• The governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. 

• Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities 
the government operates like businesses, such as gas, water and sewer system. 

• Fiduciary fund statements use resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the primary 
government. These funds are not available to support the City's programs and operations. 

The financial stateinents also include notes that explain soine of the information in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information 
that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Table A-1 shows how the required 
parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. 

Table A-1 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the City's 
government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this oven, iew section of 
management's discussion and analysis explains the structure of contents of each of the statements. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2024  

Table A- I 

Scope 

Government-

 

Wide 
Statements 

Entire City 
Ciovernment 

Governmental 
Funds 

The activities of the 
City that are not 
proprietary or fiduciary, 
such as general government, 
public safety, streets and 
drainage. sanitation, 
recreation and buildines and 
grounds, civic center. and 
code enforcement 

Proprietary 
Fund 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses: 
the water, gas, and 
sewer system 

Fiduciary 
Fund 

Instance in which 
the City is the 
custodian for other 
parties' resources 

Required • Statement of • 
financial 

 

net position • 
statements • Statement of 

activities 

 

Balance Sheet 
Statement of 
revenues, 
expenditures, and 
changes in fund 
balances 

• Statement of 
net position 

• Statement of 
revenues, 
expenses, and 
changes in net 
position 

• Statement of 
cash flows 

• Statement of 
fiduciary net 
position 

• Statement of 
changes in 
fiduciary net 
position 

Accounting Accrual 
basis and accountinL,  and 
measurements economic 
focus resources focus 

Type of All assets and 
asset/liability habilities, both 
information financial and 

capital, and 
short-term and 
long-term  

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources 
focus 

Only assets expected to 
be used up and 
liabilities that come due 
during the year or soon 
thereafter: no capital 
assets included 

Accrual 
accountinL,  and 
economic 
resources focus 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and 
capital, and short-
tenn and long-
tenn  

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources focus 

All assets and 
liabilities. both 
short-terni and 
long-tem the 
City's funds do 
not currently 
contain capital 
assets. although 
they can 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 

Revenues for which 
cash is received during 
or soon after the end of 
the year, expenditures 
when goods or services 
have heen received and 
payments are due during the 
year or soon thereafter 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year. reeardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless 
of when cash is 
received or paid 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2024  

Government-vvide Statements 

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies The statement of net position includes all of the 
govemment's assets and habihties. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the 
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid 

These two government-wide statements report the City's net position how they have changed. Net position 
- the difference hetween the City's assets and liabilities - is one way to measure the CiVs financial health. 
or financial position. 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are an indicator of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively 

• To assess the overall health of the City you need to consider additional nontinancial t'actors such 
as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's infrastructure. 

The government-wide tinancial statements of the City are divided into two categories. 

• Governmental activities — the City's basic services are included here, such as general government. 
public safety, streets and drainage. sanitation. recreation and buildings and grounds, mil: center, 
code enforcement. and economic development. Property taxes and sales taxes finance most of these 
activities. 

• Business-type activities — the C'ity charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of services it 
provides. The city's water, gas, and sewer system are included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fiind financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds - 
not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of 
funding and spending for particular purposes. 

The City has three kinds of funds: 

• Govermnental funds — Most of the City's basic services are inchided in governmental funds, which 
focus on (11 how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and 
out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the 
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 
the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus 
of the govemment-wide statements, we provide additional inforniation on the subsequent page, that 
explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 

• Proprietary fund - Services for which the City charges customers a fee is generally reported in a 
proprietary fund. The propnetary fund, like the government-wide statements. provide hoth long 
and short-term financial information. In filet. the City's enterprise fund (one type of proprietary 
fund) is the same as its business-type activities, hut provide more detail and additional information, 
such as cash tlows. 

• Fiduciary fund — These funds are used as depositories for police evidence. The funds are custodial 
in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. We exclude these activities from 
the City's govenunent-wide tinancial statements because the City cannot use these assets to tinance 
its operations. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2024 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Net position. The City's combined net position increased between fiscal years 21)24 and 20.'3 
approximately $5 million to approximately $96.7 million. (See Table A-2.) 

 

Tahle A-2 
City's Net Pusition 

Governmental Business-Tvpe 
Activnis. ActIN 

2024 2023 1014 2023 

Current and uther assets S 24.237.040 $ 12,391.497 $ 10.842,723 S 8.875,059 
Capital assets, net 63.189.107 48,942.1)74 4.7058,604 48.431,812 

Total assets 87.426,147 81.333.571 57,901,327 57.306,871 
Defened outflows of resources 7.425.327 8.842,248 1,313,172 1.675.415 

Total assets and deferred 
outflows of resources 94.851.474 90.175.819 59.214,499 58.98'1.'86 

Current and other liabilities 6.139.610 8.352.106 1.799,688 2.011.885 
Long-term liabilities 31.262.695 27.921.045 15.099,620 16.483.270 

Total liahilities 37.5(12.315 3(i.273.151 16.899,308 18.495.155 
Deferred intliiws of remain:es 2.400.4s4 2.116.779 604.935 04o.)1) 

Total liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resuurces 39.908.799 38.389.931) 17.504.243 19.144.67 

Net position 

    

Net investment in capital assets 57.204.009 47.813.490 35.312.204 35.603.364 
Restricted 1.749.636 6.779,756 613.531 613.531 

Unrestricted (4,010.970) (2.807.3Y7) 5.784.521 3.621.024 
Tutal net position S 54.942.675 $ 51.785.889 $ 41.710.256 $ 39.837.919 

Total assets and deferred outflows for the City's governmental activities increased 54.7 million. The 
business-type activities increased $232,213. 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows for the City's governmental activities increased $1 5 million. The 
business-type activities decreased $1.6 million 

The largest portion of net position is the net investment in capital assets, which totals $57.2 million for the 
City's governmental activities and $35.3 million for the business-type activities. Capital assets are used to 
provide services to the citizens of the City of Gonzales and are not available for further spending. Net 
investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt: therefore, the resources needed to repay the debt 
must be provided from other sources as capital assets cannot he used to liquidate liabilities. 

The deficit of $4 million in unrestricted net position in the governmental activities is primarily the result of 
long-term liabilities such as the net pension liability required under GASB 68 and the accounting for other 
post-employment benefits under GASB 75. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2024  

Revenues and transfers 
Program re‘ enues 

Tabk A-3 
Changes in City's Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2024 2023 2924 2023 

    

Charges for services $ 2,795,259 $ 3,044,786 $ 7,029,774 $ 6,631,356 
Grants and contributions 3,445,989 3,772,841 

  

General revenues 

    

Taxes 22,106,276 21,058,082 986,025 936,724 
Licenses and permits 1.732,450 1,888,640 

  

Miscellaneous 717,980 617,767 795,860 699,745 
Non-employer contributions to 
pension plan 383,870 384,535 54,725 52,716 

Investment earnings 1,172,241 460,772 352,257 56,454 
Contributions Transfers, net (2.294,648) (1,075,414) 2,294.648 1,075,414 

Total revenues and 
transfers 30,059,417 30,152,009 11.513.289 9,452,409 

Expenses 

    

General government 3,373,349 3,146,756 

  

Operating expenses 

  

9,640,952 9,653,157 
Public safety 14.476,101 13,373,427 

  

Streets and drainage 3,0(12,987 2,831,146 

  

Sanitation 1,335,890 1,289,107 

  

Recreation. Buildings & Grounds 2.337,308 2,387,860 

  

Civic center 117,867 98,791 

  

Cude enforcement 452,028 409,428 

  

Economic development 1,570,922 785,953 

  

Interest 236,179 41,056 

  

Total expenses 26,902,631 24,363,524 9.640,952 9.653,157 

Change in net position 3,156,786 5,7£;8.485 1,872,337 (200,748) 
Net position, June 1 51.785,889 45,997,404 39,837.919 40,038,667 
Net position,1Iay 31 S 54,942,675 $ 51,785,889 41,710,256 S 39,837,919_ 

The City's total revenues and transfers increased by approximately $2 million to $41.6 million. 
Approxitnately 57 percent of the City's revenue is derived from property and sales tax collections. Charges 
for services represent 24 percent of revenue. Capital and Operating Grants and Contributions represent 8 
percent. Licenses and permits represent 4 percent of revenue. The remaining 7 percent represents 
miscellaneous, non-employer contributions to pension plans. and investment earnings. 

The total cost of all programs and services mcreased approximately $2.5 milhon or 7.4 percent. The City's 
expenses cover all services performed by its office. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
MAY 31, 2024  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As the City cornpleted the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fimd balance of approxirnately 
$18.6 million, a decrease of approximately $5.7 million or 23 percent frorn last year. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

There were no arnendrnents made ui thr current year to the general fund or any special revenue funds 
budget. 

(:APITAL ASSETS 

At the end of 2024, the City had invested approximately $110 million in a broad range of capital assets, 
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, vehicles. water and sewer lines, 
improvements, construction in progress. and right to use assets. ( See Table A-4) This amount represents a 
net increase (including additions and deductions) of approximately $12.9 million from last year. 

 

Tahle A-4 
City's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation and amortization) 
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2024 2023 2024 2023 

Land $ 4.728.563 $ 4.728,563 $ 118,S28 S 118,828 
Buildings & Equipment 25,071,665 7,962,606 386,465 437,194 
Improvements 29.061,452 24,736,088 8,819 9,762 
Lines, meters, & plants - 

 

46,148,208 45,042,079 
Vehicles 315,026 659,516 66,670 110.891 
Construction in Progress 2,426,292 10,251,573 116,659 2,607,955 
Right to use assets 1.586,109 603,728 2 p,95; 105.103 
Total $ 63.189,107 S 48,942.074 S 47.058.604 S 48,431.812 

This year's major capital asset additions included: 
• Business-Type Activities lines and meters in the arnount of $142.885 for costs associated with the 

ongoing wastewater improvements and upgrades of plant. 
• Business-Type Activities buikhng irnprovements totaled $6,352. 

• Governmental Activities improvements to buildings, parks, bridges, sidewalks, streets and drainage 
in the amount of $3,327,372. 

• Construction in progress for Business-Type Activities totaled $377,433 and Ciovemmental 
Activities totaled $12,785.500. 

• Right to use assets for Govermnental Activities totaled $1,278,194. 
• Right to use assets for Business-Type Activities totaled $147,380. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2024  

This year's major disposals mclude. 
• ernmental Activities disposals of vehicles totaling $346,167 and buildings. equipment 

totaling $21,000. 
• Business-Type Activities had disposals of vehicles totahng $33.794. 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The City had the following long-term liabilities outstanding at year end. 

 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2024 2023 2024 20/3 

Bonds payable S 4,243.000 S 5,392 S1t).?t)4.9-1£S S11.075,948 
Notes payable 17,598 79.662 1,315.186 1.539.008 
Lease liabilities 1,634,476 622,080 226,266 110,768 
Other post-employment benefits 7,348,265 7,344.845 1,745.019 1.743.998 
Net pension liability 18,039,581 19,552,871 2,658,773 3,074,423 
Compensated absences 554,972 529.200 64.850 54.547 
Total $31,837,892 $28,134,050 $16,215,042 $17,598,692 

The City's total long-term liabilities increased by approximately $2.3 million primarily due to the increase 
in the bond and lease liabilities. The offset tor the total is contributed to principal paydowns on bonds, 
notes, and leases and changes in actuarial assuinptions and investment performance. See note 9 fin-
additional information on changes in long-term liabilities and hreakout of current portion of long-term 
liabilities. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

For fiscal year ending 2025, the City is dependent on sales tax collections for 71% of its general fund 
revenues. The City's Administration has projected a Pi, increase in sales taxes for the upcomine fiscal year. 
Expenditures budgeted in the general fund will remain consistent to the previous year. The City believes 
that the 5 percent increase in sewer rates and 3 percent increase in water rates will be more than enough to 
cover oneoing repairs to the sewer and water infrastructure. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is desiped to provide our citizens, taxpayers. customers, and estors and creditors 
with a general o‘erview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money 
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information. contact Brandon 
Boylan, 120 South Irma Boulevard, Gonzales, LA 70737. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

MAY 31, 2024  

ASSETS 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Tntal 

   

Cash and cash eqiuvalents $ 8,829,776 S 4,749,866 $ 13,579,642 
Investmeilts 10.344.865 3,831.782 14,176,647 
Receivables 514.791 661,262 1,306,053 
Due hoin other govenunents 3.447.697 166.078 3,613.775 
Due film] other funds 

 

5,683 5,683 
Accrued interest 17.014 11,899 28,913 
Restricted assets: 

   

Cash and cash equivalents 1.082.897 568.842 1.651,739 
Ins estments 

 

627.311 627,311 
Non-depieciable capital assets 7.154.855 1 ,716.783 9,881,638 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 56.034.252 44,331,821 100,366,073 

TOTAL ASSETS 87  426.147 57.901.3'7 145,327.474 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Pensi, qi related 5,867,1'3 847,749 6,714,922 
OPEB related 1.558 154 465.-123 '.0'3,577 

Total deterreil outflows ot resources 7 125 3'7 1.313.1 72 S.73S.199 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources i 94 851.47 4 S 59,214,499 S 154,065 973 

LIABILITIES 

   

Accounts payable a 1.179.514 $ 80.882 S 1.260,396 
Retainage payable 90.024 

 

90,024 
Due to othei funds 5.683 - 5,6R3 
Accnied expenses 277.349 39,491 316,840 
Cash bonds 26.367 - 26.367 
Unearned revenues 4,085,486 

 

4,055,486 
Payable from iestncted assets: 

   

Custu quer deposits - 563,593 563,893 
Current portion of long-term liabihnes 575.197 1.164,697 1.739,894 
Long-tenn liabilities: 

   

Other post employment benefit liability 7.348.265 1,745.019 9,093,"84 
Compensated absences 554.972 64.850 619,822 
Net pension liability 18.039.581 2.658.773 20,698.354 
Lease liabilities 1.257,877 177.911 1,435,788 
Notes payable 

 

1.079.209 1.079,209 
Bonds payable 4,062.000 9,3'4,583 13,386,583 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,502.315 16.699308 5-L401.623 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Pensu qi related 566,366 55.259 621,655 
OPEB ielated 1 840.118 s49.646 ',389.764 

Total deterred inflows of resowees 2.406,-0%4 601.03 .011.119 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment in capital assets 57,20-1,009 35.312.'04 92.516,213 
Restricted 1,7-19,636 613,531 2,363,167 
Uniestncted (4.0 1 0.970) 5.784.521 1 771 sii 

TOTAL NET POSITION 54,942.675 41,710,256 96.652,931 

Total liabilities, deferred influws of resource% and net position 1, 94,651.474 S 59.214.499 $ 154.065,973 

The accompanying notes are an iuteiti al part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZAIES  

STATEMENT OF ACT IV ITILS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024 

 

Program Revenues 

 

Net (Expen<el Revenue awl 

 

Fees F Ines. and Capital Operatimi Changes ui Net Po.ition 

 

Cliaree. for Grant,. aml Grant. and ernmenta I Businesrtype 

 

Expense:, seroces Contribution. Conn Amnon:, A.m.itAcp Activities Tout 

ACTIN'ITIEs 

   

Governmental: 

   

tieutial ;4r:err/Mein i 3.3'3,340 S 1.777.0,4n S 1 no goo i 22- .711. S t..138.5°,  i S - S t338,503) 
Public adety 

   

Police 0.5%0.443 138.50S I0 431 - 42.1of (.1.4.On:8.0421 tb.608.302) 
Fne 4.1:4.6.658 g 70.714 

 

(4.M6.0441 [4.006.044) 
S Veil% mid dr unage ,,r10,2.937 1.-113.0n2 

 

i I 46'4.45) (I.834,93s. 
Sanitation 
Recresto.n. Biu1diues & Grimm% 

1 335,00, 

2 337,30g 22.'25 

0,,iss.8901 kt.5,bon) 

(2.314.58..1 t2 3114.583) 
Cn i.. center ll - .MS" 

 

( I 1 7.Z671 (11- .86". 
Code exiforcenieut 452.028 

 

.452.0.:Si (452.028) 
Eer.nomic Development 1.5- n.Q22 

 

(1.5"0.122) .1.5- 0.022) 
hitere.t an loux-terni li .bilines 2.05,179 

 

i23o 171) 1236. 70 I 
Toni (mvenunental acnvitie., 2o.002,W1 2. ,S.S.259 2 453 30.3 0'32.006 .2r1.661...5 , 1 

Buiduris-t,pe 
L Wiry 0.040.052 7.i1Z9.77-1 

 

(2 611 I'M t2..till.178) 

Total busuirsi-rype a:Annie.. o.040.o52 ',029,774 

 

(2611 I'M t2..till.I7S) 
Total City of ('lonzalez, s 76 , 1'. ,•: C o.r.5 ,,,, • : l' J.'2 COM1 i.:).661 ....S , 1 42 611 111) (23 22.561) 

Unmet Revenuex. 

   

Taxes 

 

22.100.27i. 086.028 

 

Liembe. and permilx 

 

1.732.4SO t 732.450 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

7 ".otto 705 860 t 5 I3.b4n 

 

Thinsfers. net 

 

.2 204.64111 2.294.648 

 

Non-eniployei connibutions to pension pbui 
ills estrueut e.ulungs 

 

O 3.870 54 725 438.505 
1.172.241 152 257 1.524.408 

 

Total ireneral re% cone. 

 

4 4). cl 28.361.1.34 

 

Outlet in net poattoes 

 

I V2 5.020.123 

 

Net p..sit1011-1..ennnung 

 

• V 3,7 solo l.c.13.buS 

 

Net position - 

 

1,-, • 11 lu _.; is 

The sCsomp.inyukg note, are an inteeral part of this fiiisncisl siaien.ent 



CITY OF GONZALES 
BALANCE SHEET  

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
MAY 31. 2024  

 

Geneial 
Fund 

Capital Piojects 
Fund 

Tanger Mall 
Economic 

Development 
District 

Conway 
Ecoilomic 

Development 
Disukt 

PACE Center 
Ecoliomic 

Development 
Disum 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

ASSETS 

      

Cash and cash equivalents S -1,321.486 S 3,865.ii06 S 171.702 S 96.798 S 3 74.784 S 8.829.776 

bwestments 10.344 865 

 

- 

  

10.344 865 
Recet vables. net of aliew311Ce 509 149 5.6-12 - 

  

514 791 
Due fioni vdter governments 2.501 476 664 313 149 792 20.726 120.390 3.447 697 
Due from other funds 85.251 503.890 - 

  

589.141 
Ascrued interest 11 .014 - - 

  

11.014 
Restnetell wssets-

       

Cash and cash equivalents 

  

892. O82 

 

196.215 1.082 s97 

Total assets S S.038.851 S 1,205.176 S 11- .524 S 685,389 S 2-1,826.181 

LIABILITIES 

      

ALconnts payable S 353.967 S 688.729 S 112.723 N 24,095 S 1,179.514 

Retainage payable 

 

90 024 

   

90 02-1 
Due to other funds 481 157 

  

113,667 

 

594 824 
Cash bowls 26 367 

    

26 367 

Ascrued expenses 269.181 

   

7.96s 277.349 
Unearned revenues 26.412 4 059.074 

   

4,085.486 

Total liabilities 1.157 284 4.837  827 112.723 113.667 32.063 6.253 564 

FUND BALANCES 

      

Conunnted: 

      

Capital pinieLts 

 

201.024 - 

  

201.024 
Restricted - - 1.092.453 3,857 653.326 1.749.636 

Assiped 336 471 

    

336 47! 

Unassigned 16.285.486 - 

   

16.285.486 

Total fund balances 16.621 957 2n1 024 1.092 453 

 

653.326 18.572 617 

Total liabilities and fund balances S 17.7 79.241 $ 5.038.s51 1.205.176 S 117.524 S 685.389 $ 24.826.181 

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of du. financial slatement 



CITY OF GONZALES  

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNNIENTAL FUNDS BALANC'E SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSTCION  

MAY 31, 2024  

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position is 
different because: 

Deferred outflows - pension related 
Deferred outflows - OPEB related  

$ 18,572,617 

5,867,173 
1,558,154 

Capital assets used in the governmental activities that are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the pvernmental ftmds: 
Cost of capital assets at May 31. 2024 118,216.889 
Less: accumulated depreciation as of May 31. 2024 56,613,891) 61,602,998 

Right to use assets at May 31, 2024 2,058.388 
Less: accumulated amortization as of May 31, 2024 (472,279) 1,586,109 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and 
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. 

Net pension liability (18,039,581) 
Dekrred inflows - pension related t 566,36(i) 
Deferred inflows - OPEB related ( 1,84(1,118) 
Other post employment benefits (7,348,265) 
Lease liabilities (1,634,476) 
Notes payable (17,598) 
Bonds payable (4,243,000) 
Compensated absences t 554,972) 

Total net position at May 31, 2024 - Governmental Activities 54,942.675 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this tinancial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 
YEAR ENDED MAY 31.2024 

RFVENCES 
General 

Capital 
Pro.e...ts 

Tinnier Mall 
From ink 

Developiuent 
District 

Conoay 
Econ. link 

Deveh.pinent 
Distritt 

PACE Center 
Eci atomic 

Developmetit 
District 

Total 

Governmental 
Funds 

      

Taxe. S 16.456.705 S 3,944.101 S 940,409 S 92.765 S 672.296 S 22.106,276 
Franchise fees 1.313.994 

    

1,313,994 
Licenses and pernuts 1.732.450 

    

1.732.450 
Fees. fules and furfeinu es I38.506 

    

138,505 
Miscellaneous 482.950 22.695 

  

212.335 717.980 
Wastewater impact fees 

 

463.046 

   

463.046 
Fire depannielli revenue 879.714 

    

879.714 
Intergi ivemmental revenues: 

      

Fedeial 4ants 142.72? 10.381 

   

153.104 
State and local grants 8-19.883 2.443.002 

   

3.292.8ti5 
Investnient earnings 699.079 I96,(02 15 7  0f.,2 

 

99,719 1.1 72 241 
Total revenues 22.69(OO3 7,(I79.227 1 ()9-  4 7 1 113 14-4 964.350 31.9- 0.195 

EXPENDITURES 

      

Current: 

      

General govenunent 2.719.418 671,255 

   

3.390.673 
Atliltr safety 

      

Police 7.780.735 1.944.670 

   

9.725.405 
Fire 4.405,207 1.004,306 

   

5.409.5 l3 
Streets am! drainage L459.665 5,445.7M 

   

6.905,451 
Samtatkc 1.336.387 

    

1.336.387 
Recreation, buildimi and go Rinds 1.771.241 9.494.858 

   

11.266.099 
Cork. Leiner 67.205 2,219 

   

69,424 
Code enforcement 413.144 48.933 

   

462,077 
Economkilevelopment 

  

672,455 40(1,000 158.892 1.231,347 
Capital outlay 174.503 

   

336.208 510.711 
Debt Service: 

      

incipal 23.424 30-1,439 

  

174,000 5(11,863 
Intel est 3, 79.188 

  

153.885 236.179 
Total expenilinues 20.154.1,35 18.995.654 6- 2.455 400.1.00 822A,85 41.045.129 

Excess a revenues (wet inaidei) 
expenilintres 2.541.968 (11.916.427) 425.1116 (286.856) 161.365 (9.074.934) 

OTHER FINANCING, S011-RCES (USESI 

      

Loan proceed!. 

 

4,411.608 

   

4.411,608 
Finance leases 174.503 1,103.692 

   

1.278,O5 
Tnuofer in 48,987 11.529,329 

   

11.578.316 
Tiaiisfer out (3.600.1100) (5.074.648) (3.323..00) (65.316) (1.810.000) (13.872.964) 

Total taker /thanking sources (uses) (3.376.5101 11,969,981 13.323,000i 165.3161 (1.810.000i 3.395.155 

Nel change In hind balances (A34.542) 53.554 (2.897.984) (352.172) (1.648.635) (5.670.779) 

Fund Balance, Begiiming of Yein 17.456.499 147.470 3.99(1,437 356.029 2.301.961 24.252,396 
Hind Balance, End of Veal $ 16.621.957 S 201,024 S 1.092,453 S 3.857 S 653.326 S 18.572,617 

The a..LotupauytuK notes ate 311 inte.trral part of this linantial stalement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN Ft 'ND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMEN f OF ACTIVITIES 

NIAY 31. 2024 

Total change in net fund balances - Govermnental funds 

The change in net position ieported for governmental activities in the statement ot 
activities is different because: 

Governmental limds report capital outlay as expenditures. However. in the statement 
of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated ovei their estimated useful lives 
and reported as depreciation expeuse 

Capital acsets: 

Capital outlay capitalized 16,112,872 

Ripht to use assets additions 1,278,194 

Depieciation expense (2.848.220) 

Amortization expense for right ro use assets (294,592) 

Loss on disposed light to use asset (1,221) 

15,679,779) 

14,247,033 

Governmental funds report debt pwceeds as other financing sotnees. Howe\ er. iu the 

Statement ot Activities, this debt is recorded as a liability. Likewise, in the 

povemmental funds, ptinciple payments aie ieported as an expenditure, but in the 

Statement of Activities, its teported as a reduction in liabilities. 

Lease liabilities inclined 

Payments un lease obligations 

Issuance of long-term liabilities 

Payments on other long-term liabilities 

(1,278,195) 

265.799 

14,411,608) 

236,064  (5,187,940) 

(494.438) 

(86,188) 

383,870 

(25,772) 

Net effects of change in net pension liability and defenals 

Net effects of change in C)PEB liability and deferyals 

Non-employer conti ibutions to pension plans 

Changes in compensated absences   

Changes in uet position of guxernmental activities   3,156,786 
    

The accompanying notes are an integrant tlart of this financial statement 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  

PROPRIETARY FUND 
NIAY 31 2024 

 

Enterprise 
Fund 

ASSETS 

 

Curreitt assets: 

 

Cash and cash equivalents S 4.749.864 
Investmelits 3 831.782 
Receivables (net of alli mance) 881.262 
Due how other governments 166.078 
Due fri lin other binds 5.683 
Restricted assets - investments 627 311 
Restncted assets - cash and cash equivalents 568,842 
Accnteil interest 11 S99 

Total current assets in.84'.713 

NI nicurrent assets: 

 

Non-depreciable capital assets 2 726.783 
Capital assets, net i if accumulated depreciation and amortizati, .11 44.331.821 

Total noncunent assets 47.058 604 
TOTAL ASSETS 57.901,327 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 

Pension related 847.749 
OPEB related 465.423 

Total defeired outflows of resources I 113 172 

Total assets and deferred ontflosss of resources 59.214.499  

LEABILITIES 
luient 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Cturent portion of long-teim liabilities 
Cush imer deposits 

Total current liabilities 

  

80.882 
39.491 

1.164 697 
563,893  

1.848 963     

Nom:am-oat liabilities: 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability 

64.850 
2 658.773 

Net OPEB liahihty 1.745.019 
Lease liabilities 177911 
Notes payable 1.079,209 
Bonds payable 9.324 583 

Total noncurrent liabilities 15.050.345 
IOIAL LIABILITIES 16 899.308 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 

Pensi.,11 related 55.289 
OPEB irlated 549 646 

Total deferred inflosss of resources 604,935 

NET POSITION 

 

Net investment in capital assets 35 312.204 
Restricted to deht service 613.531 
Unrestricted 5 784.521 

TOTAL NET POSITION 41.710.256 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources aad net position 59 214.499 

The accompany= notes are an intesaal part of this financial statement 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
STATEMENT OF REN ENUES. EXPENSES. AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION  
PROPRIETARY FUND  

YEAR ENDED \IAN 31, 2024  

OPERATING REVENUES 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 

Charges for sen ice: 
Gas sales S 2.063,503 
Sewer sen ice charges 2,888,707 
Water sales 2.077.564 

Miscellaneous 795.860 
Contributions from non-employer contributing entities-pension benefit 54.7'5 

Total operating revenues 7,880,359 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

 

Cias deparunent 2.002.268 
General and administrative 1.172.509 
Depreciation and amortization 2.047.258 
Water department 3,(115,684 
Sewer department 1,180,682 

Total operating expenses 9,418,401 

OPERATING LOSS (1.538.042) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

 

In% estment earnings 351: 757 
Sales tax rex enue 986,0/5 
Interest expense (222 551) 

Net nonoperating revenues 1.115.731 

Loss before transfers and contributii (422,311) 

Capital contribution,: 2,294,648 

Changes in net position 1.872337 

Total net position - beginning 39,837,919 

Total net position - ending ti 41.71(1.256 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CLEY OF GONZALES  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND  

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customeis 

Enterprise 
Fund 

5 7.815 759 
Paynients t4 supplieis (5.989.506) 
Payments to employees (l 714.705) 

Net cash provided by operating actis ities 111.548 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 

Intel govei I uuentai ievenue 986 025 
Net cash provided by noncapilal financing activities 986,025 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of capital assets 
Payments on long-term liabilities 
Inteiest paid 
Capital contributions 

(526.67o) 
(1,126.704) 

(222.55 n 
2.294.648 

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 418 723 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 

Pr..ceeds fioni sales and maturities of investments 1.253.441 
Purchases of uivestmeuts ( I 420.570) 
Investnient earnings 352.257 

Net cash provided by investing activities 185.128 

Net increase in cash and restricted cash 1.701 424 

Cash and restricted cash - June 1, 2023 3.617 284 

Cash and restricted cash - May 31, 2024 5 5.318.708 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 

Operating loss (1.538,042) 
Adjustmeuts to reconcile operating loss to net 

cash provided by openting activities - 

 

Depreciation and amortization 2 047.258 
Bad debt expense 23.624 
Pension expense adjustment (415.650) 
OPEB expense adjustment 1.021 
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities 

 

Accounts receivable (107,(125) 
Due to from other fiinds (5 683) 
Other assets (10.027) 
Deferred inflow of resources (44.277) 
Defened outflow of resources 362.243 
Accounts payable (158.569) 
Customer deposits 74.562 
Acciued liabilities (128 190) 
Compeiisated absences 10,303 

Net cash provided by operating activities S 111.548 

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Financing Activities: 

 

Assets aomued through kase obligations 147 380 

The accompanying notes ale an inteknal part of this financial stateinent. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND  

MAY 31, 2024  

Custodial 

ASSETS Fund 

Cash and cash equik alents 46.320 

TOTAL ASSETS 46,320 

NET POSITION 

Restricted for: 

Individuals, organizations, and other governments 46,320 

TOTAL NET POSITION 46.320 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND  
MAY 31, 2024 

Additions: 

Custodial 

Fund 

 

Evidence $ 43.431 

Total additions 

Deductions: 

 

Disbursements to other governments 871 

Total deductions 871 

Change in fiduciary net position 42.560 

Net Position - Beginning 3.760 

Net Position - Endinu 40.320 

The accompanvin2 notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary uf Sianificant Accountine Policies 

The City of Gonzales, Lomsiana, (the City) was incorporated April 15, 1922, under the provision of 
the Lawrason Act. The City operates under a Mayor-City Council form of government. 

The accompanying financial statements of the City has been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Pursuant to Govenunental Accounting 
Standards Board t GASB) Statement No. 62. Codification qf Accounting and Financial Reporting 

Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30. 1989 FASB and .11CPA Pronouncements, the City has 
elected to directly incorporate into GASB's authoritative literature and certain pronouncements issued 
by FASB and its predecessors on or before November 30, 1989 

Financial Reporting Entity 

This report includes all funds which are controlled by, or dependent on the City's executive and 
legislative branches (the Mayor and the City Council). Control by or dependence on the City was 
determined on the basis of hudget adoption, taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election or 
appointment of governing body, and other general oversieht responsibility. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, certain organizations are not part of the City and are thus excluded 
from the accompanying financial statements. These are the Friends of the Museum, Beautification 
Board. and Committee on Cultural Affairs. 

The fmancial report has been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34, basic Financial 
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, issued 
in June. 1999. 

Related Organizations - The City Council is also responsible for appointing the members of the board 
of the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales. but the City's accountability for this 
organization does not extend beyond making the appointments. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the stateinent of activities display 
inforniation about the City of Gonzales These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
eovernment, except for fiduciary activities These statements distinguish between the governmental 
and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revemies, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed 
in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary uf Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The staternent of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a prograrn or fimetion and. 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Prograrn revenues include (a) fees, fines. and 
charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered hy the programs and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
profgam. Re% enues that are not classified as prograrn revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general re% enues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. 
Separate statements for each fund category — govermnental and proprietary — are presented. The 
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise fund, each displayed in 
a separate column. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
a General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. .It is used to account 

for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
h Capital Projectc Ftmd — Capital Projects Fund is used to aceount for financial resources to be 

used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by 
proprietary funds). 

c. Tunger Mall Economic Development District — This fund accounts for funding used in 
econornic developrnent projects selected by the District through sales tax revenues collected in 
the district. 

d. Conway Economic Development District — This fund accounts for the funding dedicated to 
infrastructure improvernents in the District through a sales tax and hotel occupancy tax 
collected in the distnct. 

e. PACE Center Economic Development District — This fund accounts for the funding purpose of 
financing. construction. maintenance and operation of an event and conference center for the 
City through a hotel occupancy tax collected in the district. 

The City reports the followiig proprietary fund. 
a. Enterprise Fund - This fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated 

in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is 
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and sen ices to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges: or (b) 
where the go% erning body has decided the periodic detennination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, anctor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability. or other purposes. 

The City reports the following fiduciary fund: 
a. Custodial Fund — The Custodial Fund is used as a depository for police e% idence. The fund is 

custodial in nature and does not involve measurement of results of operations. 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary uf Sianificant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Nleasurement Fncus, Basis of Accounting 

Government-mde and Proprietaly Fund Finunciul Statements The go‘ ernment-wide and propnetary 
tinancial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City 
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include 
property taxes, grants. entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes 
is recognized in the tiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements. and 
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Finawial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the 
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest 
on general long-term debt and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent 
they have matured General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, grants, and interest are 
considered to be su.sccptible to accrual. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 

Proprictaly Fwid Financial Statements. Proprietary funds are reported using the economic financial 
resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. The operating revenues. such as 
charges for services. result trom exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the flind. 
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receive and gives up essentially equal values. Non-
operating revenues. such as investment earnings and sales tax revenues. result from nonexchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. 

lnterfund Activity 

Transfers between funds are not expected to be repaid and are accounted for as other financing sources 
(uses). These other financing sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements. 

1) The City's Mayor and Clerk prepare a proposed hudget message and budget and submit it to 
the City Council prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

2) A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time. a public hearing is called. 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (continued) 

3) A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least two weeks after publication of the call 
for the hearine. 

Afier the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5) Budgetary amendrnents imolving the transfer of funds from one department, program, or 
function to another, or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding 
amounts estimated require the approval of the City Council. 

6) A11 budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7) The budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Budgeted 
amounts are as originally adopted. or amended from time to time by the City council. Such 
amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  - Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt 
instruments with an original maturity of three months or less, excluding amounts whose use is limited 
hy board designation or those amounts with third-party payers. 
Accounts Receivable  — In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned 
at vear-end and not yet received. For governmental activities, uncollectible amounts due for receivables 
are recognized as bad debts and directly charged off at the time information becomes available which 
indicates that the particular receivable is not collectible. In governmental fund types. the uncollectible 
amount is charged to the revenue reported. In business-type activities, uncollectible amounts due from 
utility billing receivables are recognized as bad debts through the use of an allowance account or are 
directly charged off at the time information becomes available which indicated that the particular 
receivable iN not collectible. Utility accounts in excess of 120 days are deemed uncollectible and 
reserved through the allowance. 

Investments  — Investments are reported at fair value. 

Capital Assets  — Capital assets, which include property. plant. equipment, and infrastnicture assets (e.g. 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at 
historical cost or estimated cost. Assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001. consist of the road network assets 
that were acquired or that received substantial improvements subsequent to July 1. 1980, and are 
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated replacement cost Donated fixed assets are recorded 
as capital assets at their estiinated fair market value at the date of donation. The municipality maintains 
a threshold level of $5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary uf Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Class Estimates Useful Lives 
Buildings and Infrastructure 30-40 
Improvements 15-40 

Vehicles 5-15 

Equipment 3-40 

Depreciation of tixed assets used by business-type activities is charged as an expense against 
operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Years 
Lines, meters, & plants 15-50 
Buildings & improvements 15-40 
Equipment 4-10 
Vehicles 4-5 

All tixed assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not 
availahle. Donated tixed assets are stated at their estimated fair value on the date received. 

Interest incurred during construction in the governmental activities and business-type activities is 
reflected in thr capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of investment earnings on invested loan 
proceeds during the same period. Net interest expense capitalized during the year ended May 31, 2024, 
amounted to $0. 

Lea.ses - The City is a lesser under noncancellable lease agreements for a variety of purposes and uses, 
including equipment and vehicles. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. the City 
recognizes a lease liability and an intang fi ible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the nancial 
statements Lease liabilities are recorded for lease contracts with an initial individual value that is 
material to the financial statements and with lease period.s greater than one year. 

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease liability at the present value of 
payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the 
principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of 
the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus 
certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is ainortized on a straight-line basis over its 
useful life. Key estimates and judgments related to leases include (1) the discount rate used to calculate 
the present value of expected lease payments, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. 

• The City uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate, if provided. When 
the interest rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the City uses its estimated incremental 
borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Leases-amtinned 
• The lease terms include the noncancellable penod of the lease and optional renewal periods. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed 
payments through the noncancellable term of the lease and renewal periods that 
management considers reasonably certain to be exercised. 

The City monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will 
remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect 
the amount of the lease liability. Lease assets are reported with capital assets and lease liabilities are 
reported with long-term liabilities on the statement of net position. 

Com ensated Absences — The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund statements consists of unpaid. accumulated annual and vacation leave balances. The 
liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees 
currently eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are expected to become 
eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are included. 

Bad Debts — Uncollectible amounts due for ad valorem taxes and customers' utility receivables are 
expensed when the deht becomes uncollectible, which is not materially different from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The City considers anv utilitvy  receivahle 
where service has been disconnected to be uncollectible. All utility receivables with service are 
considered collectible 

Statement of Cash Flows  - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprise Fund considers 
all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets), with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liahilities at the date the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures. 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ firom those estimates. 

Government-Wide ancl Proprietary Fund Net Position  — Government-wide and proprietary fund net 
position displayed m three components: 

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction. or improvement of 
those assets. 
Restricted net position —Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by external 
groups such as creditors. grantors. contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments, or 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling litigation. 
Unrestricted net position - Consist of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of 
"restrictee or "net investment in capital assets". 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to 
used restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Fund Equity of Fund Financial Statements — Accounting standards require governmental fund balances 
to be reported in as many as five classifications as listed below: 

Nons endable — represents amounts that are not expected to he converted to cash because they are 
either not in spendable form or legally contractually required to be maintained intact. 
Restricted  — represents balances where constraints have been established by parties outside the 
City or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
Committed  — represents balances that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constrnnts imposed by formal action of the Citv Council. 
Assioned  — represents balances that are constrained by the government's intent to be used for 
specific purposes. but are not restncted or committed. 
Unassigned  - represents balances that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not been 
restricted. committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. 

When expenditures are incurred for the purposes thr which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are 
available, the City reduces restricted amounts first, followed hy unrestricted amounts. When 
expenditures are incurred for purposes thr which committed, assigned and unassigned amounts are 
availahle, the City reduces committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned 
amounts. 

Deferred ( )ut flows • Inflows 0 f Resources 

In addition to assets. the Statement of Net Position or Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial element, deterred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not he 
recognized as an outtlow of resources (expenditure) until then. The City has two items that qualify for 
this category: pension related and OPEB related deferrals, which are reported in the govenunent-wide 
statement 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position or Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section thr deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) at that tune. The City has two items that qualify for this category: 
pension and OPEB related deferrals which are reported in the government-wide statement. The amounts 
deferred are recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become availahle. 

Pension Plan 

The City of Gonzales is a participating employer in multiple cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plans as descrihed in Note 12. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of each of the plans, and additions toIdeductions 
for the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
plan. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary uf Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Pension Plan  (continued) 

For this purpose. benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recopized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments have been reported at fair value 
within the plan. 

Reclassification 

Certain pnor year amounts have heen reclassified for consistency with the current period presentation. 
These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations. 

Transfers In and Out 

Advances between hinds which are not expected to he repaid are accounted for as transfers. In those 
cases where repayment is expected, the transfers are accounted for through the various due from and 
due to accounts. 

Due from Othri-  Governments 

The receivable amounts are made up of taxes and fees collected by other governments to be remitted, 
amounts due on reimbursement grants, and reimbursements for expenditures from other agencies. No 
reserve for =collectible is considered necessary for these receivables. 

lnterfund Receivables and Pavables 

During the course of operations transactions occur between individual funds. These receivables and 
payables are classified as "due to or due from other fiinds" on the fund financial statement balance 
sheet. 

Newly Adopted Accounting Standard 

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information 
Technology Arrangements (SBITAs). The objective of this statement is to better meet the information 
needs of tinancial statement users hy establishing uniform accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for SBITAs. improving the comparability of financial statements among governments 
that have entered into SBITAs. and enhancing the understandability. reliability, relevance, and 
consistency of information about SBITAs This statement was impleniented during the year and had no 
effect on the City's financial statements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

A summary of deposits followed. 
Cash. Under state law, the City may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws 
of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state or the laws of the United States. The City may 
invest in certificates of deposit of any bank domiciled or ha% ing a branch office in the state of Louisiana. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in an event of hank failure. the City's deposits may not be returned 
to it. The government does not have deposit policy for custodial risk. As of May 31. 2024, these deposits 
were completely collateralized and/or insured. 

Cash Equivalents: The City has $2,725.548 invested in the Louisiana Asset Manacement Pool (LAMP). 
a local government investment pool. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a nonprofit corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local governments having contracted to 
participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP 
is to provide a safe environment for the placement of puhlic funds in short-term, high-quality 
investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local 
covernments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA — R.S. 33:2955. 

GASB Statement No 40 Deposit and Investment Risk Di&closure, requires disclosure of credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, cmicentration of credit risk interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all 
public entity investments. 

LAMP is an invesunent pool that, to the extent practical, invest in a manner consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for in% estrnent pools. 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAni by Standard & Poor's 
• Custodial credit nsk. LAMP participants' in% estments in the pool are evidenced by shares of 

the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed. but not categorized becau.se they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity's investment 
is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk. Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent disclosure 
requirement. 

• Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access 
to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted 
average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 
days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. 
Government floating:variable rate investments. 

• Foreign currency risk. Not applicable 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by 
LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset value 
of the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP 
is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and fbr the year ended May 31, 2024. are as follows 

Governmental Activities: 

Cost of Capital 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

    

Land S 4.728.563 $ - S S 4,728.563 
Construction in Progress 10,251.5~3 12.785.500 (20.610.781) 1.426.'9' 

Builduigs & Equipment 20.260.261 17.930.008 (21,000) 38,169.769 
Improvements 61.589.269 6.008.145 

 

67.597.414 
Vehicles 5,641,518 

 

(346,167) 5,295.351 

Right to use assets-vehicles 546.722 1.103.691 

 

1,650.413 
Right to use assets-equipment 248.132 174.5113 (14.660) 407.975 

Total 103,266.038 38.(101.847 C20.992,(,08) 120,275.'77 

Accumulated Depreciation 54.132.838 7.848.'711 (367,167) 56,613.891 
Accumulated Amortization 191.126 294.591 (13,439) 472.279 

Total 54,3 '3.964 3,142.812 (38I1.606) 57.086.170 

Total Capital Assets. net 48.942.074 S 34.50.035 S (20.612.002) 5 63. .107 

For the vear ended May 31. 2024, depreciation expense of $2,837.830 was charged to the following governmental 
functu 

Code Enforcement 1.322 
Civic Center 48.443 
Streets and drainage 1,24(1.029 

Fire 262.779 

General 515.524 
Police 360,310 

Recreation 419.813 

Fair the year ended May 31, 2024, amortization expense of $294,592 
funchl 

$ 7.848.'70 

waN charged to the follov, pvernmental 

Code Enforcement $ 18.687 

Administration 7.981 
General Government 5,959 

Streets and Drainage 34.539 
Recreation 7.399 
Fire , .002 

Buildings and Ciround,, 18.749 
ilice 199,276 

) 94.7,01 
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3. Capita! Assets  (continued) 

Busine.....-Type Activities: 

Cost of Capital 

Beginning 

Hidance Increases Decreases 

 

Ending 

Balance 

     

LanJ S 118,828 S 

  

118,828 

Constmetion in Progress 2,607,955 377,433 (2,868.729) 

 

116,659 

Buildings, Improvements, & Equipment 1,161,547 6,352 

  

1,167,899 

Lines, Meters, & Plants 74,330,210 3,011,614 

  

77,341,824 

Vehicles 386,126 

 

(33,794) 

 

35',331 

Right to use assets-vehicles 117,449 147,380 

  

26-1.829 

Total 7S,72),115 3,541,779 (1,90/.5.23) 

 

79,36"),371 

Accumulated Depreciation 30,'77,957 2,007,730 (33.794) 

 

32,251,893 

Accumulated Amortization 12,346 39,5'18 

  

51.874 

Total 30,290,303 2,047,258 (33,794) 

 

32,303,767 

Total Capital Assets. net $ 48,431,812 $ 1,495,521 S(2,868,729) 4 47,058.604 

For the vear ended May 31, 2024, depreciation and amortization expense was $2.047,258. 
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4. Accounts Receivable 

General 

Fund 

Capital 

Projects Fund Utility Fund 

Receivables: 

    

Accounts 

   

S 689,932 

Unbilled accounts 

   

308,720 
Other receivahles 376,390 

   

Grants receivables 282,329 

 

5.(,42 

 

Gross receivables 509,149 

 

5.642 998.65' 
Less• allowance for 
uncollectible (149,570) 

  

(117,390) 
Total receivables, net 
of allov.ance $ 509,149 y 5.64.2 $ 881.262 

5. Investments 

State law authorizes the City to in% est in U.S. Treasury obhgations, obligations guaranteed by federal 
agencies, U.S. government mstntmentalines which are federally sponsored, obligations of the State of 
Louisiana and other States, and certificates of deposit obligations and other investments allowed by law. 

As of May 31, 2024, the City had the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 Over 5 years 
General Fund 

    

U.S. Agencies $ 3.269,654 S 856.624 $ 2.073.172 S 339,858 
U.S. Treasuries 4,374,407 1,632,480 2,741,927 

 

Municipal Bonds 2.138,918 866,084 1,172,834 

 

Commercial Paper 561,886 - 561,886 

 

Total General Fund 

    

Investments S 10,344.65 S 3.355,188 S 6,640.819 S 339.858 

Enterprise Fund 

    

U.S Agencies $ 2,727,977 $ 898,937 S 1,829,041 ti 

U.S. Treasuries 1,731,115 605.196 1.125,919 

 

Total Enterprise 

    

Fund Investments S 4.459,03 $ 1.504.133 $ 2.954.960 S 

Total Investments $ 14,803,958 $ 4,g59, 311 S 9,604,779 S 339.858 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5. Investments  tccmtinued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

The City's imestment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to 
fair value losses arising from increasine interest rates. 

Credit Risk 

State law limits investments in securities issued, or backed by the United States Treasury obligations. U.S. 
Government instrumentalities, which are federally sponsored, and other political subdi% isions. The City's 
investment policy does not further limit its investment choices. As of May 31, 2024, the City's investments 
in U.S. Agencies were rated AA+ by S&P's Investors Service and Aaa by Moody's Investor Services. The 
City's investments in U.S. Treasuries were rated AA+ by S&P's Investors Service and Aaa by Moody's 
Investors Services. The City's investments in Municipal Bonds were rated AAA, AA+, AA, and A by 
S&P's Investors Services and rated AI. Aa1„,Na2 and Aa3 by Moody's Investors Services. The City's 
investments in Commercial Paper were rated AAA, AA—, and AA- by S&P's Investors Services. A portion 
of the City's investments in U.S. Agencies and U.S. Treasuries were unrated. These investments made up 
20% of U.S. Agencies and 2% of U.S. Treasuries. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The City places no linnt on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the 
City's investments are in US Treasury, Federal Home Loan Morteagx Corp, Federal National Mortgage 
Assoc, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Municipal Bonds. These investments are 40%, 91!/0. 13°;4 I .5 1!..), and 
14%, respectively of the City's total in% estments. 

6. Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach an enforceable lien on property ofianuary 1 of each year. Taxes are levied by the 
City in September or Octoher, and are actually billed to the taxpayers in November Billed taxes hecome 
delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year 
billed. 

The Ascension Parish Shenff bills and collects property taxes using the assessed values determined by the 
tax assessor of Ascension Parish. The Ascension Parish Sheriff remits the taxes to the City. 

For the year ended May 31, 2024 taxes of 8.55 mills were levied on property with taxable assessed 
valuations totaling S192,017,500 and were dedicated as follows. 

General corporate purposes 5.28 mills 
Fire department 3.27 mills 

Total taxes levied were $1,666,324. Property tax millage rates are adopted in the calendar year in which 
the taxes are levied and recorded. All taxes are due and collectible when the assessment rolls are filed on 
or betore December 31 of the current year, and become delinquent thereafter. 
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7. Transfers and Contributions to/front Other Funds 

Transfers and contrihutions to; from Other Funds at May 31, 2024 consist of the following: 

 

Transfers and 
Contrihutions In 

Transfen and 
Contributions 0ut 

General Fund 48,987 3.600,000 
Capital Projects Fund 11,5 7'9,329 5,074,648 
Tanger Mall EDD 

 

3.323,000 
Conway EDD 

 

65,316 
PACE Center EDD 

 

1,810,000 
Enterprise Fund 2,294,648 

  

$ 13,872,964 $ 13.872.964 

Transfers and contributions to and from the different funds are to provide supplemental funds for fund 
operations. At the end of the year, the General fund reported a due to Enterprise fund $5,683. 

8. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets, which consist of cash and cash equivalents and investments at May 31, 2024 were 
applicable to the following: 

 

Enterprise Fund 
Tanger Mall 
EDD Fund 

PACE Center 
EDD Fund 

Customer Deposits S 563.893 

  

Cash equivalents-Money Market 4.949 4,673 190,215 

Investments 

Cash equivalents-LAMP 

627.311 
8t;S.009 

 

Total restricted assets S 1,196,153 892.6S? S 190,215 

9. Long-Term Liabilities 

Lease Ohli2ations 
The City leases various equipment and vehicles. These leases range in terms from 3 to 5 years and payment 
terms vary in both frequency and amounts. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87. Leases, a liability 
has been recorded for the present value of lease payments over the lease term for each agreement. As of 
May 31. 2024, the combined value of the lease habilities was 51,860.742. In determining the present 
values, discount rates of 6% to 7% were applied, depending on the duration of the lease agreement and 
other factors. The recorded combined value of the right to use assets as of the end of the current fiscal year 
was $2,323,217 and combined accumulated amortization of these assets was $524,153 
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9. 1.on g-T erm Lia bilities (continued) 

Notes Pavahle 
Notes payable at May 31, 2024, is comprised of the following: 

The City has a note payable to a Company, due in Mav 2029, payable in 
monthly installments of $25,000, with interest at 5.3%, secured hy 
equipment. 

The City has a note payable to a Company, due in November 2024, payable 
in an annual installment of $18,282, with interest at 3.88%, secured by 
vehicles. 

Total notes payable 
Less: current portion 
Net long-term liabilities 

Bonds Payable 
Bonds payable at May 31. 2024. is compnsed of the following individual issue. 

Utility obheation bonds:  
$15,170,000 Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds dated September 22. 2014. 
due in annual installments of $780,000 to $866,000 through March 1, 2035, 
interest at 0.95%, secured by collection of sales taxes. 

$2,400,000 Taxable Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2022 dated Mav 24, 2022, due in 
annual installments of $69,000 to $129,000 through March 1, 2042, interest at 
1.9.51!o. secured by collection of sales taxes. 

Occupancy tax bond:  
.S4.500,000 Taxable Hotel Occupancy Tax Bond, Senes 2021 dated Apnl 1. 
2021, due in annual instalhnents of $83.000 to $652,000 through May 1, 2044, 
interest at 3.88%, secured by collection of occupancy taxes. 

Total bonds payahle 
Less: current portion 
Net long-term liabilities 

S 1,315,186 

17,598 
1,332,784 
(253,575) 
1,079,209 

$ 8.302.472 

1.902.476 

4.243.000 
14,447,948 

(1,0(i1.365) 
S 13,386,583 



CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

9. Long-Term Liabilities (contmued) 

Chaiwes in Long.-Term Liabilities 
The folloning is a summary of lona-term liabilities transactions of the City of Gonzales for the year ended 
May 31, 2024: 

Governmental activities: 

Balance at 
June 1. 2023 Addititins Reductions 

Balance at 
May 31, 2024 

Due 
Within 

One Year 

     

Compensated absences $ 529,200 $ 48,287 $ (22,515) $ 554,97/ S 
Notes payable 79,662 

 

(62,0(i4) 17,598 17,598 
Lease liabilities 622,080 1.278,195 (265,799) 1,634,476 376,599 
Other post-employment 
benefits 7.344.845 593,954 (590,534) 7,348,265 

 

Net pension liability 19,552,871 - (1,513,29(1) 18,039.581 

 

Bonds payable 5.392 4.411,608 (174,000) 4,/43.,000 181,000 
Total $ 28.134,050 S 6,332,044 S (2,628.202) $ 31,837.892 S 575,197 

Business-type activities: 

     

Compensated absences $ 54.547 14.666 $ (4,3(,3) $ 64,850 

 

Notes payable 1.539,008 - (223,822) 1,315,186 235,977 
Lease liabilities 110,768 147,38(1 (31,882) 226,266 48,355 
Other post-employment 
benefits 1,743,998 177.415 (176,394) 1,745,019 

 

Net pension liability 3.074.423 - (415,650) 2,658,773 

 

Bonds payable 11,075,948 

 

(871.00(I) 10,204.948 880,3(i5 
Total S 17.598.692 S 339,-161 S (1,723,111) 16.215,04'2 51,164,697 

The fithire principal and interest lease payments as of Nlay 31, 2024, are as follows: 
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Year ending May 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2025 S 376 599 S 107 285 5 48,3s; S 14,899 
/0/6 380,402 79,516 52,039 11.213 
2027 385,161 56,553 56.006 7,245 
2028 351,/51 24,136 51,17/ 3,083 
/019 140,063 3,497 18.347 460 

 

S 1,634,476 S 270,987 S 226,019 S 36,900 

The future principal and interest note payments as of Nlay 31, 2024, are as follows: 
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Year ending May 31 Principal Interest Princi al Interest 
2025 S 17.598 S 683 S 235,977 S 64,0'8 
'0)6 

  

248,792 51.213 
2027 

  

262,304 37,701 
2028 

  

276,548 23,456 
/0/9 

  

291.565 8.438 

 

17.598 ti 683 81,315.186 8184,836 



CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9. Long-Term Liabilities  (continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize bonds outstanding as of May 3 I, 2024. are as follows: 

Year(s) ending 
May 31 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Principal Interest Principal Interest 
'0/5 $ 181,000 $ 164,628 $ 880,365 S 114,302 
2026 188,00(1 157,606 890,457 105,045 
2027 195,000 150,312 900,596 95,668 
2028 203,000 142,746 909,794 86,174 
2029 211,000 134,868 920,041 76,575 

2030-2034 1,182,000 499,821 4,755,383 234,530 
2035-2039 1,431,000 

 

571,013 59,594 
2040-2044 652.000 380.783 377,189 7,476 

 

S 4,243,000 S 1,249,981 $10.204,948 S 779,364 

Uncler the terms of the bonds, the City is required to establish a Bond Reserve and Sinkinv fund. As of May 
31, 2024. the City is in compliance with these requirements. 

10. Sales and Use and Occupancy Tax  

The City has the following sales and use and occupancy taxes in existence as of May 31, 2024. 

On September 10, 1966, a 1 percent sales tax was passed to he used for streets, sidewalks, drainage, garbage, 
utilities, parks and recreation, fire department, and acquisition and maintenance of public buildings including 
City Hall and Civic Center. 

On April 1. 1989. a L'2 percent sales tax was passed to be used for sewer, water, drainage, streets, and gas. 
This tax is pledged to the payment of the Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds dated March 1, 2014. On 
September 22. 2014, the City adopted a First Supplemental Bond Ordinance which extends the collection of 
the 1/.: percent sales tax for the purpose of acquiring, construction and installment of improvements, 
extensions and replacements to the City's wastewater treatment and disposal system. On April 13. 2020. the 
City adopted a Second Supplemental Bond C)rdinance authorizing the issuance of bonds which extends the 
collection of the !:2 percent sales tax for the purpose of paying costs of acquiring and constructing additions 
and improvements to the City's dnnking water system and paying costs of issuance. This tax is set to expire 
upon the retirement of any bonds issued payable. 

On July 1, 2001, an additional !/:.. percent sales tax was passed to be used tbr fire, police, and sanitation. 

On May 16, 2005, proceed.s frorn the 1% sales and use tax authorized on September 10, 1966 and the !, 2 

percent sales and use authorized on April 1, 1989 collected within the Gonzales Economic Development 
District No. I were dedicated to the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales. Louisiana, Inc. 
to promote economic development. 

On June 1, 2012, an additional I% sales and use tax was passed to he used for funding economic 
developrnent projects selected by the Tanger Mall Economic Development District. This tax is only assessed 
in the Tanger Mall Economic Development District only. The tax is set to expire on May 31, 2032. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10. Sales and Use and Occupancy Tax  (continued) 

On May 29, 2018 an ordinance was adopted to authorize the execution of a cooperative endeavor agreement 
by and among the City of Gonzales (City), Conway Economic Development District of the City of Gonzales 
(EDD) and Conway Development LLC (Company) relating to the collection, use and expenditure of a 1% 
sales and use tax and a 1% hotel occupancy tax (EDD Tax) to be levied in the district. This tax is dedicated 
to the district to reimburse the Company for Phase 1 & 2 infrastructure improvements. 

On December 8, 2018, a hotel occupancy tax of two percent was passed to be used for the purpose of 
financing, construction, maintenance and operation of an event and conference center for the City. The tax 
is effective April 1, 2019 for perpetuity. 

11. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The City participates in the State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan, (an IRC 457 deferred 
compensation plan). The plan covers all full-time employees. The City does not match employee 
contributions. 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The City of Gonzales is a participating employer in three cost-sharing defined rnultiple employer defined 
benefit pension plans that include the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), the 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) and the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement 
System (LASERS). Article X, Section 29 (F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions of the State-wide plans to the State Legislature. Each system is 
administered by a separate board of trustees. 

Each of the State-wide Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary inforrnation for the systern. These reports rnay be obtained by 
writing, calling or downloading the reports as follows: 

MERS: 
7937 Office Park Blvd. 
Baton Rouge, LA 
70809 
(225) 925-4810 
www.mersla.corn 

MPERS: 
7722 Office Park Blvd. 
Suite 200 
Baton Rouge, LA 70809 
(225) 929-7411 
www.lampers.corn 

LASERS: 
P.O. Box 44213 
Baton Rouge, LA 
70804-4213 
(225) 922-6000 
www.lasersonline.org 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

The City implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB ) Statement 68 on Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB 68. These standards require the City the 
record its proportional share of each of the pension plans Net Pension Liability and report the following 
disclosures: 

Plan Descriptions: 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (NIERS) 

The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) is the administrator of a cost sharing 
multiple-employer defined henetit pension plan. The System was originally estahlished by Act 356 of the 
1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The System provides retirement benefits 
to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not have their own 
retirement w;tem and which elect to become members of the System. For the year ended June 30, 2(123. 
there were 88 contributing municipalities in Plan A and 68 in Plan B The City of Gonzales is a participant 
in Plan A only. 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for 2eneral information purposes 
only. 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed if the employee 
is On a permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuals paid jointly by a 
participating employer and the parish are not eligible tbr membership in the System with exceptions as 
outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of P1an A who was hired before January 1. 2013 can retire providing the member meets one 
of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with twenty-five (25) or more years of creditable service. 
Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years creditable service. 

3. Any age with five (5) years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five (5) years creditable service at death of member. 
5. Any age with 20 years of creditable service. exclusive of military seruce with an actuarially 

reduced early benefit. 

Eligibility for Retirement for Plan A members hired on or after January 1, 2013 is as follows: 

1. Age 67 with seven ( 7) or more years of creditable service 
Age 62 with ten (10) or more years of creditable service 

3. Age 55 with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused 

side leave. However, any member retiring under this subsection shall have their benetit actuarially 
reduced from the earliest age of which the member would be entitles to a vested deferred benefit 
under any provision of this section, if the member had continued service to the age 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pensiun Plans (continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (NIERS) (continued) 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any mernber of Plan A shall consist of an 
amount equal to three percent of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service. However. under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are linuted 
to specified amounts. 

Upon death of any mernber of Plan A with fne (5) or more years of creditable service. not eligible for 
retirement, the plan provides fim benefits for the surviving spouse and, or minor children as outlined in the 
statutes. Any member of Plan A. who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who few, es a 
surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected (=►ption 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving 
spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of 
any other survivor benefits. 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of Plan A 
who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 
three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, ernployer contrihutions are 
payable by employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement henetits that would be payable. had the 
person elected to cease empk)yment and received a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP 
Fund. Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Interest earnings are based 
upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as DROP funds for the period. In addition, no 
cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until employment which rnake them eligible to become 
members of the System has been terminated for at least one full year Upon termination of employment 
prior to or at the end of a specified period of participation, a participant in the Drop may receive, at his 
option, a lurnp sum from the account equal to the payment if approved hy the board of trustees. If a 
participant dies during participation in the DROP, a lump sum equal to the halance in his account shall be 
paid to his named beneficiary, or if none, to his estate If employinent is not terminated at the end of the 
three years, payments into the DR()P fund cease and the person resumes active contributing membership 
in the System. 

For Plan A, a member shall be elOble to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least five years 
of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement and has been officially certified as disabled bv 
the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability. a member of Plan A shall be 
paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of forty-five percent of his final average compensation or three 
percent of his final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service whichever is greater 
or an amount equal to three percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable sen ice projected to his earliest nornial retirement age. 
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12. I)efined Benefit Pensiun Plans (continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System is niandatory for any full-time police officer employed 
by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to nt≤•ike arrests. 
providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. 
The System provides retirement benetits for municipal police ofticers 

The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to 
be pro‘ided to current active and inactive ernployees through the System in accordance with benefit terms 
and anv additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit 
provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 — 11.2233. 

The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. 

Membership prior to January 1, 2013: A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a 
member of the System and has 25 years of creditahle service at any age or has 20 years of creditable 
service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average tinal compensation 
(average monthly earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months or jouied months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. Upon the death 
of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses and nunor 
children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from forty to sixty percent of 
the member's a% erage final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition. each child under age 
eighteen receives benefits equal to ten percent of the member's average final compensation or $200.00 per 
month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January I, 2013: Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, 
disability and survivor benefits are hased on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under 
the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been• a member of 
the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 
55. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been 
a member of the System and has 30 years of creditable sen ice at any age, 25 years of creditable service at 
age 55. or 1() years of creditable service at age 60. Under both hub plans, a member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an 
actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty suh plans. the 
benefit rates are three percent and two and a half percent, respectively, of average tinal compensation 
(average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or jomed months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service tiot to exceed 100% of final salary. Upon death of 
an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses and nunor 
children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range frorn twenty-five to fifty-five 
percent of the member's average tinal compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under 
age eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or $200 per month whichever is greater. 
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12. I)etined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (NIPERS)  (continued) 

If deceased member had less than ten years of service, beneficiary will receive a refund of employer 
contributions onlv. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan. A member is eligible to elect to enter the deferred retirement option 
plan (DROP) when he is eligible for regular retirement based on the members' sub plan participation. Upon 
tiling the application for the program, the employee's active membership in the System is terminated. At 
the entry date into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited 
into the DR()P account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant 
at date of application. The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty-six months or less. If employment 
is terminated after the three-year period, the participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or 
a true annuity If employment is not terminated, active contributing membership into the System shall 
resume and upon later termination_ he shall receive additional retirement benefit based on the additional 
service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest 
subsequent to the termination of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the 
percentage rate of return of the System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis 
but will never lose money. For those digible to enter DROP subsequent to January I. 2004, an irrevocable 
election is made to earn interest based on the Systern's investment portfolio return or a monev market 
investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate being applied to the account. If the memher 
elects a money market investment return, the fnnds are transferred to a government money market account. 

Initial Benetit Option Plan: In 1999, the State Legislature authorized the System to establish an Initial 
Benefit Option program. Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligihle for regular 
retirement and have not participated in DROP. The Initial Benetit Option program provides both a one-
time single sum payment of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly 
retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance hased on same criteria as DROP. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) 

The Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established by Section 401 of Title 11 of the Louisiana 
Revised Statutes (La. RS. 11:401) to provide retirement allowances and other benefits to eligible state 
officers, employees, and their heneticiaries. 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes 
only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pensiun Plans (continucd) 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS)  (continued) 

EliMbility Requirements  

All state employees. except those specifically excluded by statute. become members of the System's 
Defined Benefit Plan (DBP) as a condition of employment, unless they dect to continue as a contributing 
member in any other retirement system fim which they remain ehgiblr kw membership. Certain elected 
officials and officials appointed by the Ciovernor may. at their option, become members of LASERS. Also, 
qualiiing unclassified state employees may have made an irrevocable election to participate in the 
Optional Retirement Plan (CRP) between July 12, 1999 and December 7, 2007, when the plan closed. 

Retireinent 

The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire with fttll benetits are 
slablished by sqatute, and vary depending on the member to retire with full benefits are established by 
statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job classification. The majority of 
our rank and file members may either retire with full benefits at any age upon completing 30 years of 
creditable service and at age 60 upon completing ten years of creditable service depending on their plan. 
Additioiially, members may choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially reduced 
benefit The basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to 2 5% to 3.5% of average compensation 
multiplied by the number of years of credible service. 

Average cornpensation is defined as the member's average annual earned cornpensation for the highest 36 
consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006. For members hired July 
1, 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member's average annual earned compensation for 
the highest 60 consecutive months of employment. The maximum annual retirement henefit cannot exceed 
the lesser of 100% of average compensation or a certain specified dollar amount of actuarially determined 
monetary limits, which vary depending upon the member's age at retirement. Judges. court officers, and 
certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal to 1.01!..) of average 
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in their respective capacity. As an 
alternative to the basic retirement benefits, a member may elect to receive their retirement throughout their 
life. with certain benefits being paid to their designated beneficiary after their death. 
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12. IleGned Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirenient System (LASERS) icontinued) 

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session. changed the benefit structure for LASERS 
members hired on or after January 1, 2011. This resulted in three new plans• regular, hazardous duty, and 
judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and those members who were formally eligible to 
participate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and judges are 
eligible to retire at age 60 after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any age, with reduced 
benefit, after 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous duty members are eligible to retire with twelve 
years of creditable service at age 55. 25 years of creditable service at any age or with a reduced benefit 
after 20 years of creditable service. Average compensation will be based on the member's average annual 
earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment fbr all three new plans. 
Members in the regular plan will receive a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual rate, 
hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual rate, and judges a 3 5% accrual rate. The extra 1 0% accrual rate fbr 
each year of service for court officers, the governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk, sergeants 
at arms, or Senate secretary, employed after January 1, 2011, who are hazardous duty employees have the 
option to transition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

A member leaving employment before attammg minimum retirement age, hut after completing certain 
minimum service requirements, becomes eligible for a benefit provided the member lives to the minimum 
service retirement age, and does not withdraw their accumulated contributions. The minimum sen ice 
requirement for benefits vanes depending upon the member's ernployer and service classification but 
generally is ten years of service. 

Deferred Benefits 

The State Legislature authonzed LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). When 
a member enters DR()P. their status changes frorn active member to retiree even though they continue to 
work and draw their salary for a penod of up to three years. The election is irrevocable once participation 
begins. During DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have been paid to each 
retiree are separately tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to January 1, 2004, interest at a rate 
of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero) will be 
credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose among available 
alternatives for the distribution of henetits that have accumulated in the DR(:)P account. Members who 
enter DRC)P on or after January 1, 2004, are required to participate in LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SDP) 
which is administered by a third-party provider. The SDP allows DROP participants to choose from a 
menu of investment options thr the allocation of their DROP balances Participants may diversify their 
investinents by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds with different holdings, management 
styles, and risk factors. 
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12. I)etined Benefit Pension Plans t continued) 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS)  (continued) 

Members digible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive at the time 
of retirement an initial benefit option I IBO) in an amount up to 36 months of benefits. with an actuarial 
reduction of their future benefits. For members who selected the IBO option prior to January 1, 2004, such 
arnount may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at a rate of one-half percent less 
than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those members who sdect the 
IBO on or after January 1, 2004, are required to enter the SDP as described. 

Disahility Benefits 

All members with ten or more years of credited service who hecome disahled may receive a maximum 
disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula without reduction by reason of 
age. 

T_Tpon reaching age 60, the disahility retiree may receive a regular retirement benefit hy malcing application 
to the Board of Trustees. 

For injuries sustained in the line of duty, hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Duty Services Plan 
will receive a disability benefit equal to 75% of final average compensation. 

Survivor's Benefit 

Certain eligible surviving dependents receive henefits based on the deceased member's compensation and 
their relationship to the deceased. The deceased member who was in state ser‘ ice at the tiine of death mast 
have a nunimum of five years of sell ice credit, at least two of which were earned immediately prior to 
death. or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit regardless of when earned in order for a 
benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an unmarried child until age 
18. or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned minimum service credit 
requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to be paid fbr life 
to the spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29 (E) (2) (a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authoritv 
to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially determined using statutorily 
established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion 
of the normal cost and provide thr the aniortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer 
contributions are adopted by the Leeislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  continued) 

Contrihutions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended May 3 1, 
2024, for the City and covered employees were as follows: 

 

City Employees 
Municipal Employees' Retirement Svstem — Plan A 29.50% 10.00% 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

All employees hired prior to 01.01;2013 and all 
hazardous duty employees hired after 01:01.2013 

 

10.0(M 
Non-hazardous duty hired after 01!01.2013 33.93% 8.0O% 
Employees receiving compensation below poverty 

  

Guidelines of US Department of Health 36.43% 7.50% 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System - 

  

Judges hired prior to 01,01 .2011 44.70% 13.00% 

The contributions made to the Systems tbr the past three years ending on May 31. were as follows. 

Municipal Employees' Retirement 
2024 '013 10,  

   

System: Plan A $ 1,769,812 S 1,653,140 $ 1,536,405 
Municipal Police Employees' 

Retirement System $ 1,207,477 $ 1,039,903 $ 959,198 
Louisiana State Employees' 

Retirement System 3.168 3,110 3.061 

 

''.9S0.457 $ 2,690.153 $ 2.498.064 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expen.e, a nd Deferred Outflows of Resources and I)eferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability allocated by each 
of the pension plans based on the June 30, 2023 measurement date. The City uses this measurement to 
record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts as of May 31. 2024 in accordance with GASB 
Statement 68. The schedule includes the proportionate share allocation rate used at June 30, 2023 along 
with the change compared to the June 30, 2022 rate. The City's proportion of the Net Pension Liability 
was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pensiun Plans  (continued) 

Governmental Activities: 
Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana: 

Net Pension 
Liahility at 

June 30, 2023 
Rate at 

June 30. 2023 

Increase 
(Decrease) to 
June 30. /0n 

Rate 

   

Plan A $ 7,567,279 2.797930% -(1.049178% 
Municipal Police Employees' 

   

Retirement System 10.449,610 (1.989081% -0.065063% 
Louisiana State Employees' 

   

Retirement Systern 22,691 0.00034% -0.0000201!..3 

 

S 18,039.580 

  

Business-type Activities: 

   

Municipal Employees' Retirement 

   

System of Louisiana. 
Plan A $ 2.658.774 2.797930% -0.049178% 

The following schedule lists each pension plan's recognized pension expense (henetit) of the City for the 
year ended May 31, 2024: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana: 

Pension Expense 
(Benefit) 

 

Plan A $ (233,779) 
Municipal Police Employees' 

 

Retirement Systern 670,042 
Louisiana State Employees' 

 

Retirement System (2,6(18) 

 

433,655 

At Mav 31. 2024. the City reported deferred outtlows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions frorn the thllowing sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 743.47 5 (97,89(!) 
Change of assumptions 174,372 

 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 2.303,311 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contrihutions 513,357 (51(1,4(13) 
Differences between allocated and actual contributions 

 

(13,362) 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,980,457 

 

Total 6,714,922 S (621,655) 
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12. Defined Benefit Pensiun Plans (continued) 

Summary totals of defened outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources hy pension plan: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement 

Dekrred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

  

System of Louisiana: Plan A 3.260.573 $ (212.649) 
Municipal Police Employees' 

  

Retirenient System 3.450,560 (4(19.006) 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement 
System 3,789 

  

6.714.922 1621.655) 

The following table lists the City's contributions to each retirement system that is reported as deferred 
outflow of resources related to pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 
30. 2023 which will be recognized as a reduction in Nrt Pension Liability in the year ended May 31. 2024. 
The following schedule list the pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement period for each 
pension plan: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Subsequent 
( .ontributions 

 

Plan A $ 1.769,812 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 1,207,477 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 3,165 

 

2.980.457 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year MERS NIPERS LASERS Total 
2024 $ 497,258 $ 695,413 $ 628 $ 1,193,199 
70/5 7,168 205,793 (830) 212,132 
2026 848,101 988.728 1,123 1,837.953 
2027 (74.415) (55.858) (301) (13(t,574) 

 

$ 1,278.112 $ 1,834.077 S 630 S 3.112,810 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Actualial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for 

each pension plan as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

 

MERS MPERS L ASE RS 
Valuation Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023 June 30. 2023 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Ape Nonnal 

Actuarial .kssumptions: 

   

Expected Remaining 

   

Service Lives 3 years-Plan A 4 years 2 years 

Investment Rate of 6 85% ner of pension 6.75% ner of investment 7.25°o per annum, net of 
Return plan uivestmetit 

expense, including 
inflation 

expenses investnien t expense 

Inflation Rate 2 50°. 2.50qo 2.30qo 

\ tort:int). PubG-2010t B) Healthy Pub-2010 Public Retirement Non-disabled members-

  

Retiree Table set equal Plan Mmiality Table for Safety mortality rates for 2020 were 

 

ro 120°. fi)r males and Below-Median Healthy based on die RP-2014 Blue 

 

females, each adjusted Retirees multaphed by 115% Collar (males. females) and 
using their aespectave 
male and female 
MP2018 scales PubG-

 

2010(B) Einployee 
Table set equal tu 1201 
fur males and females. 
each adjusted using 
rheir respective male 
and female MP2018 
scales PubNS-2010(B) 
Disabled Rethee table 
set equal to 120% tur 
males aud feuiales with 
rhe full generational 
MP2018 scale. 

for males and 125% for 
females. each with full 
generational projection using 
the MP2019 scale was used. 
Pub-2010 Publac Rethement 
Plans Mot tality Table fur 
Safety Disable Retirees 
multiplied by 105°. foi males 
and 115% for females, each 
with full genetatioual 
projection using the MP2019 
scale was used Pub-2010 
Public Re thement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safery 
Below-Median Employees 
multiplied hy 115% foi males 
and 125°.0 for females, each 
with full generational 
projectIon using the MP2019 
scales was used The mortality 
late assumption used was set 
based upnia an experience 
study performed by the priur 
actuary un plan data for the 
period of July 1. 2014 tluough 
June 30. 2019, and review nf 
similar law enforceinent 
mortality 

White Collar (females) Healthy 
Annuitant Tables piojected nn a 
hilly generational basis by 
Klortality Improvement Scale 
MP-2018 Dasabled membeas - 
mortality rates based on the RP-
2000 Disabled Reline Mortality 
Table. with no projection foi 
moi ralitv nnprovement 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

NIERS NIPERS LASERS 
Termination. disabality. and retirement 
assmilptions were projected based on a five-
year (2014-2018) experience study of the 
System's anembers. 

Termination. 
Disabilit. and 
Retirement 

Salary 
I ncrea ses 

Salary Increases were projected based on a 
2014-2018 experience study of the System's 
members The salary increase ranges for 
specific tvpes of members ale: 

Member LoWer Upper 
Type Range Range  

Regrilar 3.0% 12.8% 
Judges 7.60  0 5.1% 

Correctrons 3.600 13.8% 
Hazardous 3.60 13.10b 

Duty 
3.6% 13.800 

Plan A 
1-4 years of service - 6.P0 
More than 4 year s of service - 
4.5% 

The Svsrem is authorized 
under stare law to grant a cost 
of living increase to members 
who have been retired for a 
least one year. The adjustment 
cannot exceed 2% of the 
retirees original benefit for 
each full calendar year since 
retirement and may only be 
granted if sufficaent funds are 
available froin Investment 
income in excess of normal 
requireinents. State law 
allows the System to grant 
additional cost of living 
increases to all retuees and 
beneficiaries who are age 
sixty-five and above equal to 
2% of the benefit being 
received on October 1, 1977 
or the original benefit, if 
retirement commenced after 
that date 

Years of Salary 
Service GI ow th 

Rate 
1-2 12 34.Y0 

Above 2 4.70°0 

The present value of future 
ietirement benefits is hased on 
benefits currently being paid by 
the System arid includes 
previously granted cost-of-living 
Increases The present values do 
not inchide provisions for 
potential future increases nor vet 
authorized hy dre Board of 
Trustees. 

Cost of Living 
A dj t merits 

The present value of fitture ietirement 
benefits rs based on benefirs cmrently heing 
paid by the System and includes previously 
granted costs of living increases. The 
projected benefit payments do not include 
pro.% isions for potentral future Increases not 
yet authorized by the Board of Trustees as 
they were deemed not to be substantively 
automatic 

MERS - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an 
experience study for the period July 2013 through June 30. 2018. 

MPERS - The actuanal assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 aluation were hased on the assumptions 
used in the June 30, 2019 actuarial fimding ‘aluation and were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period of July 1. 2014 through June 30, 2019. 

51 



CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

LASERS - The actuanal assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuahon were based on the results of an 

experience study for the period July 1, 2014 throu.c_th June 30, 2018. 

The following table provides a summary of the best estimates of arithmetwgeornetric real rates of return 

for each major asset class included in each of the Retirement Systems target asset allucations as of June 
30. /013: 

Asset Clas. 

 

Target Allocation 

 

Lung-Term Expected Real Rate of Returu 
MERS NIPERS LASERS NIERS MPERS LASERS 

Puhlic equity :vict„ 

 

O°0 2.44°0 

  

Equities - 52°3 52°0 

 

3 29°. 9 So°. 
Puhlic fixed income 29% - - l.2O0 

  

Fixed income - 34% 20°0 - I 12% 7.37°0 
Alteniatives 15",, I 4".. 1 8% O.650.0 0 95°0 £< 19% 
Cash - - - - 

 

0 80% 
Other - - - 

  

- 
Total 100°0 10(r 0 DM% 4.35% 5 36% 5.75% 

Iullation 

   

1 .50% 2.50°0 2 30% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Returu 

  

6.85°0 7 90°b i9qo 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions 

will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contnbutions will be made at rates equal to 

the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan's tiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 

future benetit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 

pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 

pension liability. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liahility for MERS, MPERS and 

LASERS was 6.85?-6, 6.75% and 7.25%. respectively for the year ended June 30, 2023 

Sensitivity nf the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 

Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL) using the 

discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the NPL would 

be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one pereentage-point lower or one percentage-point 

higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 
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1.0% Decrease 
Current 

Discount Rate 1.0% Increase 
MERS A 

   

Rates 5 85% 6.85% 7.85% 
City's Share of NPL $ 14,177,117 $ 10.226.053 $ 6.888,588 

MPERS 

   

Rates 5.75% 6.75% 7.75% 
City's Share of NPL $ 14,703,426 $ 10,449,610 $ 6,896,108 

LASERS 

   

Rates 6.'5% 7.25% 8.25% 
City's Share of NPL 29,712 $ "2,691 $ 16.743 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

The City did not have anv payables due to the retirement systems at May 31, .2024. 

Support of Non-employer Contributing Entities 

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-ernployer contributing entities that are not in a special 
funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. The City recognizes revenue in 
an amount equal to their proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan frorn these non-
employer contributing entities. The City recognized re‘enue as a result of support received from MERS 
of $210.481 and MPERS of $228,114. 

13. Other Post-Em lovment Benefits OPEB 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description — The City of Gonzales (the City) provides certain continuim health care and life 
insurance benefits for its retired ernployees. The City of Gonzales's OPEB Plan (the (3PEB Plan) is a 
single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan adrninistered by the City. The authority to estahlish and:or 
amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the City. No assets are 
accurnulated in a trust that rneets the criteria in Governmental AccountinLt Standards Board (GASB) 
Codification Section P52 Posternployment Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporung fin. Benefits Not 
Provided Through Trusts That Aleet Specified Criterw—Delined Benqit. 
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13. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

Benqfits Provided — Medical benefits are provided throutth a comprehensive medical plan and are made 
availahle to employees upon actual retirement. The employees are covered by a retirement system whose 
retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows. 25 vears of sen ice at any age, or. age 60 
and 10 years of service. 

Empkvees covered hy benefit terms — At May 31- 2024, the folloNNing employees were covered by thc 
benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 11 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 

 

Active employees 116 

 

1:0; 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liability of $9.088,842 was measured as of May 31. 2024 and was determined hy 
an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions und other inputs — The total OPEB liahility in the May 31, 2()24 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation '.5% 
Salary increases 4.0°.;4 including inflation 
Discount rate 3.16% annually (Begimiing of Year to Determine ADC) 

3.74% annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 4.0% annually 
Mortality SOA RP-2000 Table 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year Cieneral Obligation municipal 
bond index as of May 31, 2024, the end of the applicable ineasurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the May 31, 2024 valuation were based on the results of onfoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from June 1, 2009 to Mav 31, 2024. 
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$ 9.088,843 

Changes in the Total OPEB 

Balance at May 31. 2023 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 229,226 

Interest 335,493 

Differences between expected and actual expenence 206,651 
C'hanges in assumptions 153(1.035) 

Benefit payments and net transfers (236,893) 

Net changes 4.442 

Balance at May 31, 2024 S 9.093,284 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes In the discount rate - The following presents the total 
C)PEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3 13%) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.13°-;,) than 
the current discount rate. 

1.11% Decrease 
(3.13%)  

Current Discouut 
Rate (4.13%)  

1.0% Increase 
(5.13%) 

     
Total OPEB liability S 11.031.3% S 9,093,784 x 7.594,079 

Sensuivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates — The following presents 
the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (3.0%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (5.0%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease 
(3.0%) 

Current Trend 
(4M%)  

1.0% Increase 
(5M%)  

Total OPEB liability S 7,764,606 S 9,093.184 10.823,244 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related tu 
OPEB 

For the year ended May 31, 2024, the City recognized OPEB expense of $341,927 At May 31, 2024, the City 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience ti 598,166 (493,173) 
Changes in assumptions 

 

1.425.411 (1,896,591) 
Total 5 2,023,577 S (2,389,7(i4) 
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years endino Mav 31: 

 

-4)15 $ (222.792) 
101(i (222.792) 
2027 (222,792) 
/018 (134.208) 
2029 40,812 

Thereafter 395,61' 
Total (306.160) 

14. Coutinaencies & Commitments 

Commitments  
At May 31, 2024, the City had outstanding commitments resulting from construction contracts in progress 
of S9,007,213. 

Litigation 
Various lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of the City management, the potential loss 
on lawsuits will not he material to the City's hasic financial statements. 

Grant Compliance 
The City receives state and federal assistance through various grant programs. Management is contident 
that all significant grant conditions have been met: however. grantor agencies routinelv review or= 
activity and could request reimbursement if a dispute occurs regarding compliance with grant conditions. 

15. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets: 
errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters The City is a member of two separate 
trust funds established by the Louisiana Municipal Association that encompasses self-insurance of (1) 
Municipal professional liability and comprehensive general liability, and (2) Statutory workers' 
compensation. The City carries commercial insurance for all other risk of loss. 

The trust funds for professional liability- comprehensive general liability and statutory workers 
compensation are pooling arrangements whereby there is sharing a risk among the participants of the trust 
funds. The City reports its premiums as insurance expenditures and expenses these premiums over the pro 
rata periods involved. 
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16. Concentration of Credit Risk-Proprietary Fund 

Accounts receivable from utility customers were comprised of the following sources: 
residential — 52%, commercial — 37%; other governmental agencies — 3%. Outstanding balances are 
partially secured by deposits made when service is requested. 

17. Tax Abatement 

The City entered into an agreement with the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana (IDB) pursuant to Part II of chapter 27 of Title 33 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of the 1950, 
as amended (La. R.S. 33:9038.31 to 33:9038.42, inclusive) (the "Tax Increment Development Acr.) These 
statutes grant the City the authority to create economic development districts, and through itself or certain 
other issuers of bonds, including local industrial development boards, to issue bonds and pledge to the 
payment of such bonds the incremental increases in sales taxes derived from the project or development 
located in the economic district and financed with such bonds. The City has agreed to abate 1.5 cents of 
its 2 cents sales tax collected within the economic development district. The State of Louisiana agreed to 
abate 1.5 cents of its sales tax collected within the district up to a maximum of $10,500,000. The IDB 
issued Tax Increment Revenue Bonds to assist Cabela's Retail LA, LLC and Carlisle Resort, L.L.C. with 
the acquisition of land, construction and equipping of a Cabela's retail outlet and certain infrastructure. 
The entire amount of the sales tax is dedicated to the payment of the Tax Increment Revenue Bonds issued 
by the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales. For the year ended May 31, 2024 the City 
abated $1,008,395 of sales taxes. 

The City created the Tanger Mall Economic Development District, (the District) pursuant to La. R.S. 
33:9038.32. La L.S. 33:9038.39 permits economic development districts to levy sales and use taxes up to 
2%. The City of Gonzales adopted Ordinance No. 2999 to levy a 1% sales tax in the District for twenty 
years. The City of Gonzales, Tanger Mall Economic District, and Tanger Properties Limited Partnership 
entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement whereby 70% of the proceeds of the tax will be used to 
reimburse Tanger Properties Limited Partnership for documented construction cost to enlarge the 
buildings, tenant allowances and improvements to the infrastructure up to $14,836,092. The remaining 
30% of the tax may be expended by the City or the District to pay for economic development projects in 
the City, whether inside or outside of the District. For the year ended May 31, 2024 the City abated 
$658,286. 

The City created the Conway Economic Developrnent District pursuant to La. R.S. 33:9038.32. La L.S. 
33:9038.39 permits economic developrnent districts to levy sales and use taxes up to 2% and to levy 
occupancy taxes up to 2%. The City of Gonzales adopted Ordinance No. 4065 to levy 1% sales and 1% 
hotel tax in the District for twenty-five years. The City of Gonzales, Conway Economic District, State of 
Louisiana and Conway Development LLC entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement whereby the 
proceeds of the tax collections in the District will be used to reimburse Conway Development LLC for 
Phase 1 & 2 infrastructure improvements. For the year ended May 31, 2024, the City abated $92,765. 
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18. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date the tinancial s atements were available to 
be issued, October 25, 2024, and determined that there were no events that require disclosure. 

No subsequent events occurtimg aftei this date have been evaluated tbr inclusion m these financial 
statements. 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  

REVENUES 

Original 

Budget 

Fina I 

Budeet Actual 

   

Taxes $ 15,301.000 $ 15,301,000 $ 16.456.705 

Franchise fees 1.251,500 1,251,500 1,313.994 

Licenses and penuits 1.585.000 1,585.000 1.732.450 
Fees. Imes and forfeinires 163.500 163,500 138.505 

Miscellaneolis 354.840 354,840 482.950 

File department revenue 801.000 801.000 879.714 
Grant revenue 971,127 971,127 992.606 

Investment earnings I 02.000 102,000 O9.079 

Total revenues , 0.5, 9.967 20,529 967 //.696.003 

EXPENDITURES 

   

Cunent: 

   

General govenunent 2,699.300 2,699,300 2.719.-118 

Public safety: 

   

Police 8.034.500 8,034.500 7.780.735 
Fire -1,313,0(10 4,313,000 4,405.207 

Streets and drainage 1,659.600 1,659,600 1,459,665 

Sanitation 1.304.800 1,304.800 1.336.387 
Recieation, building and grounds 1.861,424 1,861,424 1,771.241 

Civic center 80,000 80,000 67,205 

enfmcement 520.700 520.700 413.144 
Capital outlay 

  

174.503 

Debt Service 

   

Principal 

  

23.424 
Interest 

  

3,106 

Total expenditures 20.4 73.324 '?0.473,3'4 20,154.035 

Excess of revenues over expenditmes 56.643 56,643 ',541.96N 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

   

Finance leases 

  

174.503 

Transfers in 

  

48.987 

Transfers out 

  

(3.600.000) 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

  

(3,376.5101 

Net change in fund balance 56.613 56.643 (834.542) 

Fund Balance, Beginning af year 17.456.4(0 7.456,49,) 17,456.499 

Fund Balance, End al' Year ti 17,513.142 S 1 7.513,142 S 16,621.957 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE  

TANGER MALL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  

REVENUES 

Original 

Budiiet 

Final 

Budilet 

 

Actual 

    

Taxes S 1,060,000 $ 1.060.000 $ 940,409 

Investment earnings 

  

157.062 
Total revenues 1.060,000 1,060,000 

 

1,097,471 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

Economic development 1,060,000 1,060,000 

 

672,455 

Total expenditures 1,060,000 1.06(1,000 

 

672.455 

Excess of revenues uver expenditures 

   

425,016 

OTHER FINANCING USES 

    

Transfers Out 

   

(3,323,000) 

Total other financine uses 

   

(3.323.000) 

Net change in fund balance 

   

(2.897.984) 

Fund Balance, Beginniug of year 3.990,437 3,990,437 

 

3,990.437 

Fund Balance, End of Year S 3.990,437 $ 3,990,437 i; 1,092,453 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE  

CONWAY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY M. 2024  

REVENUES 

Orieinal 

Budeer 

Final 

Budeet 

 

Ac Lul 

    

Taxes S 1 '0 000 S 120.000 

 

91.765 

Investment eamings 

   

20.379 

Total revenues -'0.000 120,000 

 

113.144 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

Economic development 400.(1)0 400.000 

 

400.000 

Total expenditures 400,000 400.000 

 

400.000 

Excess of revenues under expenditures (280,000) {?£+i1,(1Uf1) 

 

(286,856) 

OTHER FINANCING USES 

    

Transfers out 

   

(65,316) 

Total other financing uses 

   

(65.316) 

Net change in fund balance (2s0,000) (280.(100) 

 

(352.172) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 356,029 356,019 

 

356,0'9 

Fund Balance. End of Year '', 76.019 76,029 cs 3,857 

61 



CITY OF GONZALES  
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE  

PACE CENTER ECONOMIC DEVELOPNIENT DISTRICT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NLAY 31, 2024  

REVENUES 

Oriainal 

Budeet 

 

Final 

Budeet 

     

Taxes S 894,500 S 94.500 671,196 

Miscellaneous 

   

1 1 ),335 

Investment cantinas 

   

99.719 

Total revenues 894,500 

 

894,500 984.350 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

Economic development :90,1•700 

 

890,500 158.892 

Capital outlay 

   

336,208 

Debt Service: 

    

Principal 

   

114,000 

Interest 

   

153.885 

Total expenditures ;-(m).50() 

 

mY),500 8) 2.985 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 4.000 

 

4.000 161.365 

OTHER FINANCING USES 

    

Transfers out 

   

(1.810.0001 

Total other financing uses 

   

(1.8 MOM) 

Net change in fund balance 4.000 

 

4,000 (1,648,(,35) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 2,301 961 

 

).301.961 2.301.961 

Fund Balance, End of Year S ?.305,961 5 2,305,961 653.3'16 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
SCHEIN LE OF ( 11.‘NGES IN NET OPEB LIABILIT1 AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR IDE YE tit F:NIIF:I1 NI 1Y 31. 2024  

 

1014 2t)2"; 1011 10 1 1 2020 2019 

Total OPEB Liability 

      

Service cost S 220.226 S 253.379 S 310,i02 304.550 S 21),.941 $ 201.657 

Interest 335,493 200,976 /35.i1) 266.230 295.234 297.987 

Differences between expected and 
acttial experieuce 206,6i1 (11,47i1 258,808 (1.088.074) 468.258 (32.650) 

Changes of assumptions (530.035) (832.023) H.483.951) 467.)86 1.700 314 407.746 

Benefit payments (236.893) (227.782) (269.950 (259.8501 1217 678) (226.957) 
Net change in total OPEB liability 4,442 O17,9251 (949,0851 (309,158) 2,463.069 647,783 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 0.088.812 0.606.768 10.555.853 10.865.011 8.401.942 7.754.159 

Total OPEB liability - ending S 0,003.284 S 9,088,843 S 0,606.768 S 10,555.853 S 10.565,011 $ 8,401.942 

Coveied-employee payroll S 7,052.760 S 6,781.500 S 7.471.076 S 7.183.737 S 6.525.888 $ 6.274.892 

Net OPEBliabihty as a percentage 

ctwered-employee payroll 128.03% 134.02% 1 18.59% 146 94% 166 49°0 133 90% 

Nodes to Schedule: 

Benefit Changes. None None None None None None 

Muagrc qfÅssvonprionA 

      

Dveount rare 4 13°0 3 74° o 3 16% 2 26° o 2 459'0 3.560.0 

Alortalire. RP-2000 RP-2000 RP-2UUU RP-2UUU RP-2000 RP-2000 
Trend. 4 001 o 4 001 o 4 001 o 4 001 o 4 00°0 4.00% 

Ibis schedule is intended show inf,inuation foi lo years Additional yeas will be displayed as they become available 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
S( H EDI T E OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NE I PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  (7) 

 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 20111 2017 2016 

MERS (Plan A) 

         

Employees Prupornon of the Nei Pension Lisbility (Asset) 2 -'9793°D 2 54711% 2 c8I98°4 2 5952 2 57116°0 2.55685% 2 5s35I°0 2.62655% 2.57570% 
Employees Proportionate Share of the Net Pemdfin Liahihry (Asset): 

         

Gm mulleins/ Actrvities S 7.564.279 $ 6.750.262 S 5.242.707 S 5.120."49 ti 5.165.439 5 7,940.1B S 5.225.439 $ S.269.4 lU 7.176,519 
Business-type Acta% dies 2.658.774 S 3 n74.423 S I 939.084 S 2 69/) 763 $ 2.57S 560 2.646 ",1 S 2.456.049 S 2.476.055 S 2.024.146 

Employees Coveied-Employee 5,622.117 $ 5.2(16.396 S 5.0.11,544 S 4.956.325 S 4.728.538 S 4.660.526 $ 4,637.341 $ 4.092.636 S 4.399.294 
Employees Proportionate Share of the Nei Pension Liability (Asset): 

         

as a pertentage of its Coveied-Employee Payroll 181 536410 227  1188°0 142 735.00 226 2062% 2:7 216110 227 150400 23(i 1559% 229 4120°0 209 1396,4 
Plan Faducrary Net Pusation iS a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 46001.0 67 5700% "7 &Iamb 64 $2U0°0 64.0800•0 63.9460% 62 4940% 62 110310 06 1792° o 

MPERS 

         

Employees Proportion of the Net Peushm Liability (Asset) 0 98,)08°. 1 0414% I 02992% u v767 lA. 0.5036-e. 0,58568% n 91500°. n.09666% 0.94190°0 
Employees Piopurt ionate Share of the Net Pension I tahihty (Asset): 

         

enaneutal Acid dies $ 10.449.610 S In 73.223 S 5 49t1,053 S^ 027AR' $ 7.843 543 $ '7.457.593 S 5,015.340 S 9.050.615 S 7 378.794 
Employees Covered-Employee Payioll 3.345.7  l6 S 3.196.645 S 3.114.- 33 S 2.01.533 2.593.846 S 2.608.319 $ 2.580.029 S 2.730.300 S 2.517.7.51 
Employees Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

ss a persentage of its Coveted-Employee Payroll 31211483°0 .t3- .Ir91.4 176 208°0 322.2 I 85% 302 3905% '87.0655% 309 s887°0 331 SI7m0 293 0699°0 
Plan Faducrary Net Posmon as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability -.I 3030% 70 799I% 84.058110 70 94511% 11kt7M. 

 

US1.5% 66 04:2°0 7U 7303% 

LASERS 

         

Employees Proportion of the Net Peushm Liability (Asset) 0 010)34% 0 003610 00037°'5 U 00037*e 00U i -4). 0.00039% 0 00)40% 0.00040 0.00386o 

Employees Proportionate Share of the Net Penshm Liabilary (Asset): 

         

enlineutal Actisines $ 22.691 S 27.366 S 20.145 5 30.s14 S 26 - 34 $ 26 530 S 28.366 S 51.489 S 26.118 
Employees Covered-Employee Payaoll S 7.1 lu $ 7.110 S 7.110 S 7.110 S 6.77B S 7.110 $ T.11O S 7.1 S - .110 
Employees Plopurtionale Share of the Net Pension liability (Asset): 

         

ss a percentage uf its Covered-Employee Payroll 319 1421% 354 8145% 2S3 3333°0 420 2405% 304.4231% 373.1364% 395 9592°0 442 5833% 36' 3415% 
Plan Faduciary Net Position as a Pei centaae of the Total Pension Liability 68 40010 63 70m05 8000°, 58.0000*. 62 9900% 64 3000% 62 543710 5" "2O% 62 6632% 

Scheduk is intended Al show beim-to:whin* 10 )rar., Addlininal )ror.. mill be thsplmed ales beentnr dwilable. 

(' The amounts presented have a measurement date ul the previous fiscal year end ul the tespente ietitement sy dem. 

The three Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows 
NIERS (Plan A) = tsfunicipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Mnniciral Police Employees' Reinenieul System 
LASERS = Lomsiana Slate Employees' Renreineut System 

See aci.ompanying notes to the schedule of proportionate share nf the net pension liability 
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el Pt 01 t.ONIS I as  

SA HUH 1.1 OF PEN•loN eoN RIIIISTION4, 
1. OR IHt It LAR ENDED MAY 31. 1924 

 

2614 2023 1012 2021 1•211 10l, 1010 1017 1016 
MEW. MIS .%) 

         

Cceleseuray Itegmeol S I '0.811 SI 6$?.14.1 f 1.4,6 6f6 SU" " 0+6 S I xi.* 449 S I.:10  TIO SI. S 373 Sle: Ti4) 

3. cerPetemo m Mama, fol. operaerually Kt:pored ( -ornhlioa: 1.-0.0.01.: 1 633 1411 1.31e• .1o3 i 4-4  oul !..44.4.4,043 1.121 013 I 113u.:111 09: r..3 Po: 72v 
coremlamon Deracney i Eames) S (1) % • % 2o i S i - 0 > .01 3̀, St2.140, S 1 Mlo S • S • 
Earinyersi •vere0 Empluyee Payroll' 53.00430 f $ 60 ft3. f 537,05e S S 414  I b.: 1 4.144.3I% $ 4.7089.:41 S41 tiS.1.1 IS $ &NM 6a2 S 4.420 i r 
toteaskutivas as .01. elf Venacti Employee Payroll 24.  VW. 23. 50410.. 20 14100.4 20  441/4Ito 27 Vitro 25.000u% 24.3263•6 22.3007": i• 11..73411!: 

51PERS 
eseumually Revue.' Corurrieilluet S1.1116.-L7 5 1.1C1 S 033.043 11.017.'42 S ell2.ou% S 103.41.1 S tl4.(00 S S03.110; S '-'553.0"e* 

4.0110,011.1. re P.eimom rot. emeacrually Raped Couusbunme 1.100..,30 1 WI 214 (m1 603 1.4le 30.1 002 10-  314  ao6 015.:39 7o7 ;ea 703 a76 
inalritArhon Dermeeney 'Emma S 05 % law S 1 140 S r.152 • S az% S (2.3'%, S 1.1.03p% (.4e0 S • 
Eimplo;.eie Cmeral Employee P.0.11' 53 517.424 1 a 2'9.001 1 3.13a eto3 5 3.023 20' % 2.'30 753 52.531 306 12.036.164 52.530  379 52.570  955 
Cdomberoms Ire a % of Covered Easier* Payroll 33 '31.10•• 31 l4Orat• 31,  WM% 33 oulo% 32 51 jui r. 32.1.ori, sov.r: 31.4$63% N.6.2.". 
%VERS. SON JIAZA1111O1.,s 

         

Coreraerually P.equomlComullevel S 21.143 I, la.00l % l 7.323 % 11..4.1 S I 7. 40 % lo.'30 S 14.131 S lo.131 S 1.Leae 

Comerkutomee ia P.eleke to amitaesually Required °lumber...I:  21.13% 10.411. 17.243 1%310 17.,4R 10.'49 10.1.11 10.11.! I4.416 
Coonlomon Defiaency !Lamy., S 5 % 2 S 20 % iz• 5 l 1 S ver S • 5 • 5 
Empkwei+ Cancel Emplefe P..yrole s 62/40 S Au.14:j 5 37 a4u S 34  111% S 44.642 S 3: OW S 41.063 S 10 V* S 46 2T1 
(..ntreirrom a,  a % of Cowed Employee Payroll 03."3.0N 31 1.102.: 34 11.100% 33 04113'. 32 5000% 32 1.*73% 31 Oar. 3 4 44.1..* 31 oimr. 

LAsCRs 

         

C•easenolly Regure2 Colenburvail S 3.171 1. 3.113 % 4.1144 5 3.079 S 2.072 S 2.'10 S 2.551 S 2.'02 S 2 '19 

imenlamons er Relation to Coreesenially Peome.1Cmonleoios* 3.105 3 l lu 3.0o1 t rre • ekia 2.5111 z 541 . .,,,z 

 

(.. onftkainis Defieleue.y tExer,%. S A S 4 5 3 S 3 S • S ill0li S • S • S 
EISIpley44 (meal Empinyee P..r 4. S -Ali) s ., lit, S 7.130 1 7.110 S ".1IA S a.",  S '.1lo S 7.110 S 7.110 
Cmontroioss ae a % of Covered EnipMyee Payroll 43 erne% 33 MAW; 4 I Oval'. 33 30%2*. 41 ROA, 40 1001% 40 Os", 31, 002rst 31, it2nst 

Vierade k Ullalliad lajOtillannq Pr 10 rem 4.40ponal won: urn be Jugeased a thci !wow anreabk 

For trimmer &du 
• Eimpigyr erauThinot. lee awdftplial Ilp explores 'aro ed esteem papail 
2.deard casette ennalbra..ons rimmed to Reimarre S)stetrz 
Eprieves millopre pima morns for Mr rgar ofided Ada3 II aloud* MN 

The diet Remennem %nano reared us en Awhile me as follme. 
MEP.% Into A.;  • hlesierp41 Erwleiyees' Reereeme Sy• 
NIKES Mummpel Mem Employee' Reamer Spiel, 
!MFRS - Lonna= Se0e &sifter.' P.eleseem Symms 

See acceeemayer; udn to the %tech& of pax". coeull•urowe 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET  

PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  

CHANCES IN BENEFIT TERMS AND ASSUMPTIONS RELATED T() 
DEFINED PENSION PLANS  

Changes of Benefit Terms inchuie: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System - Plan A 
There were no chaniies of benefit terms for the year ended Nlay 31, 2024 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System  
There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended May 31, 2024. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 
There were no chani2es of henetit terms for the year ended May 31. 2024 

Changes of Assumptions: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System - Plan A 
There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended May 31. 2024, 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended May 31, 2024. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 
There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended Mav 31, 2024. 



CITY OF GONZALES 
SCHEDULE OF PER DIEM PAID 

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  

Councilmen: 711ONTHLY ANNUAL 

Tyler Turner S 1.000 S 12.000 

Handd Stewart S 1.000 12.000 

Kirk Boudreaux S L0W 1 1.(100 

John Berthelot S 1.0iii) 1 /.11011 

Timothy Rilev S l Ow P.11011 

S 60.0011 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

SC HEDULE OF CONIPENSATION. BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYNIENTS 

TO AGENC Y HEAD OR C'HIEF EXECUTIVE OFFI( ER 

NIAN 31, 2024  

Agency Head Name:Tide: Barney Arceneaux, Mayor (June 1, 2023 - April 29, 2024) 

Purpose Amount 
Salary S 142,010 

Benefits - health insurance 12,604 

Benefits - retirement 41,893 
Clothing allowance 650 
Travel 541 

Conference fees 600 

 

198 297 

Agency Head Name. Title: Ryland Percy, Interim Mayor (Mav 1, 2024 - May 31, 2024) 

Purpose Amount 
Salary S 5,803 

Benefits - retirement 1,712 
Clothing allowance 379 

 

$ 7,894 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEDULE - COLLECTINGIDISBURSING ENTITY 

AS REQUIRED BY ACT 87  OF THE 2020 REGULAR LEGISLATIVE SESSION  
MAY 31, 2024 

 

First Sii Month 
Period Ended 

Second Six 
Month Period 

Cash Basis Presentation 11/30/23 Ended 5/31/24 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) 142.250 5 164.303 

Add: Collections 

   

Bond Fees 2,500 

 

7,67S 
Criminal Court Costs/Fees 70 460 

 

112.572 
Cnannal Fiues - Contempt I l 365 

 

15,795 
Restitution 4.813 

 

7,549 
Subtotal Collections 89.138 

 

143.094 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: 

   

Ascension Parish Clerk of Conn Criminal.Court Costs/Fees 2.875 

 

3,845 
Ascension Parish Court Fundrriminal Court Costs:Fees 4.110 

 

5.88U 
23rd Judicial Distnct Public Defentles Otlice:Crindual Court Costs:Fees 12 330 

 

17,640 
Palish of Ascenso in Witness Fund.Cainnnal Court Costs-Tees 9.316 

 

13.328 
LDFIll Traumatic Head & Spinal Cord Injury Tmst FundCruninal Court Costsfees 43U 

 

865 
LA State Police Academy Applied Technology-Intoxilyzer Cnmmal Court Costsfees 475 

 

I .050 
Tieasuier. State ot Lotusiana-CMIS/Criminal Couit Costs Tees 522 

 

1.176 
Ascension Clerk Fund Criminal Court C.,stsiFee% 7.120 

 

10,150 
Ascension Parish Court;Criminal Fines - Contempt 8.490 

 

11.450 
Disuict Attorney's Office 23rd JDC taimmal Court Costs/Fees 5.48U 

 

7.840 
Crime Stoppers.Vmumal Court Costs/Fees 548 

 

784 
Louisiana Suineme Court/Criminal Court CostsiFees 135 

 

193 
LA Cc.nmussion of Law EuforcementiCrimmal Court Costs/Fees 1.582 

 

7,l3l 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Amounts "Self-Disbursed" to Collecting Agency 6.053 

 

9,850 

Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies 

   

Bond Fee Retimds 750 

 

5,000 
ReSilltliulta Payments to Individuals (additional detail is not acquired) 3,563 

 

5,927 

Payments to 3rd Party CollectionTiocessing Agencies 3.006 

 

4.186 

Subtotal DisbursementsiRetainage 67,085 

 

101.295 

Total: Ending Balance of Ainounts Collected but not Disbursed!Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 164.303 S 2n6.101  
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_ _ D R 
DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Mayor, Mayor Pro Temp, 
and the Members of the City Council 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government. 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Gonzales, Louisiana, as of and for the year 
ended May 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise City of Gonzales, Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated October 25, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of City of Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Gonzales, Louisiana's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 
as item 2024-001. 

City of Gonzales, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The City of Gonzales, Louisiana's response was not subjected to the other 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on the response. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
LITAA-t-o-

 

 
Gonzales, Louisiana 
October 25, 2024 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS aNI) RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS  

Fimmeial Statemeifts 

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of City 
of Gonzales were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported. 

3. One instance of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of Gonzales. which 
would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, was 
disclosed durinit the audit. 

SECTION II - FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None noted. 

SECTION III - NON-COIIIPLIANCE VVITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

2024-001 Louisiana Budget Law 

Conti:lion: The City's (ieneral Fund had unfavorahle variance of 16.02% of total actual expenditures 
to total budgeted expenditures. Tanger Mall Economic Development District had unfavorable variance 
of 276.93% of total actual expenditures to total budgeted expenditures. PACE Center Economic 
De~elopment District had unfmorable vanance of 195.67% of total actual expenditures to total 
budgeted expenditures. Conway Economic Development District had unfavorable ‘anance of 16.33% 
of total actual expenditures to total budgeted expenditures and an unfavorable variance of 5.71% of 
total budgeted revenues to total actual revenues. In addition, each major fund noted above, did not 
properly report estimated beginning and ending fund halance for the fiscal year. 

Criteria: Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1311( A) (1-2) & 39:1305(C) t 2)(a ) require that the budget shall 
be amended when total revenue and other sources plus projected revenue and other sources for the 
remainder of the year. within a fund. are failing to meet total hudgeted revenues and other sources by 
five percent or more and total actual expenditures and other uses plus projected expenditures and other 
sources for the remainder of the vear, within a fund, are exceeding the total budgeted expenditures and 
other uses by five percent or more. The Statute also requires that a statement for the general fund and 
each special revenue fund show the estimated fund halance at the beginninit and end of the tiscal year. 

Cause: The budget was not properly amended at year-end and did not include a statement showing the 
estimated fund halance at the beginnmg and end of the fiscal year for each major fund. which resulted 
in a budget violation. 

Effect: The unfmorable vanances of re‘enues and expenditures of more than five percent is a s iolation 
cif Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1311(A) (1-2). Each major fund did not include a statement showing 
the estimated beginning and ending fund balance which is a violation of Louisiana Revised Statute 
39:1305(C') (2)(a). 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS aNI) RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2024  

SECTION III - NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS (continued) 

2024-0111 Louisiana Budget Law (contimted) 

Recommendation: The City should prepare each hudget with a statement showing estimated fund 
balances at the beginning and ending of the fiscal year. The City should evaluate the budget for the 
General Fund and each Special Revenue Fund throughout the fisa year and amend the budget, when 
necessary, in a timely fashion. 

Management's cal•rective action plan: Management of the City concurs and will prepare the budgets 
in accordance with the Louisiana Revised Statutes and monitor the budgets more closely throughout 
the year to ensure the budget is amended appropriately as necessary. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
SUMNIARY 5C'HEI)LTLE OF PRIOR ALTDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED NIAY 31, 2024  

A. FINDINGS - FLNANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None noted. 

B. FINDINGS - NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

None noted. 



CITY OF GONZALES 

GONZALES, LOUISIANA 

STATEWIDE AGREED UPON PROCEDURES 

MAY 31, 2U24  



_DDR

 

DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable Mayor Barney Arceneaux, City Council Members, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the City of Gonzales (the 
City) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in 
the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period June 1, 2023 through May 31, 
2024. The City's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

City of Gonzales has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet 
the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas 
identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period June 1, 2023 through May 31, 2024. Additionally, LLA 
has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report 
may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of 
interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are 
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address 
each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's 
operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

11. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 
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v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll proeessing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. and (3) approval process for 
employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions. (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Written policie.s and procedures were obtained and addres.s the/uncti)ns noted above. 

vii. Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense. (3) documentation recluirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

Written policies and pivccdurcs were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

viii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) 
how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitorin2 card usage (e.g., 
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Written policies and procedmvs were obtained and address the fUnctions noted above. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possihle ethics 1, mlations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notitied of any changes to the entity's 
ethics policy 

IP-Wen policiac and procedures were ithuiined and uddracs the fiinctions noted above. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval. (2) continuing disclosure EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Written policies and pmccdures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

xi. Infirmalion Technologv Disaster Recoveg/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network_ (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems. (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches:updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

Mitten policies and procedures were obtained and address the Iiinctions noted above. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment. including R.S. 42.342-344 requirements for ( ) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Mitten policies and procedures were obtained and address. the .funcuons noted above 
except fiyr the annual reporting requirement pivcedures 

Management response. Alimagement will include policy and procedures thal addres.y the 
annual reporting requirement 



2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period. as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and 

i. Observe that the board-finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter. hylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

Ohhrined and reviewed minutes o f the managing board Pr the fiscal period noting that the 
hoard met with u quorum monthly. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-
to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternatively. fin• those entities 
reporting on the not-for-pwlit accounting model. observe that the minutes referenced or 
included financial activity relating to public funds if those public Ands comprised more 
than 10°0 of the entity's collections during the fiscal powd. 

Obtained and reviewed minutes of the managmg boaidAr the fiscal period noting that the 
minutes included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons ,firr the mirror-Ands. 

For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund. If thr general fimd had a negative ending unassigned 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a fbrmal plan to eliminate the negative 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

The general fund reported a positive unrestricted And balance in the prior year audit 
report. 

iv. Observe whether the board. finance committee received written updates of the progress of 
resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until thr findings are considered fully resolved. 

Obtained and reviewed documentation that was presented to the Council on written 
updates 4 the progress 4 resolving audit findingts). according to management's 
corrective action plan at cach monthly meeting until findings were resolved. 

3) Bank Reconciliation% 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the tiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listiig is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or 
all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect 
the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation tbr each selected account, and observe that: 

Obtained listing 4 client hank accounts Ibr the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that listing is complete. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged): 



No exceptions noted. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board 
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 

Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that haire 
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date. if applicable. 

Not applicable, the entity did not have any reconciling items that have been outstanding 
hr more than 12 months 

4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transjers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the tiscal period where deposits for cash-checks:money orders 
(cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 
5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained u listing of deposit sites and management's representation that listing is complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected. obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit 
site (e.g.. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites). obtain and inspect wntten policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if there are no written policies or procedures, then 
inquire of employees about their joh duties) at each collection location. and observe that job duties 
are properly segregated at each collection location such that 

Obtained a listing of collection locations und management 's representation that listing is complete 

i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers, registers; 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsihle for preparing.making 
bank deposits, unless another employee:official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit; 

No exceptions noted. 

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee:official is 
responsible thr reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. The employee( s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and.or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and, or agency fund additions, is (are) not also 
responsible for collecting cash, unless another employeeiofficial verities the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for thefi covenng all employees 
who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during 
the fiscal period. 



No exceptions noted. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank 
Reconcilianons procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were 
made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made 
on the same day). Alternatively. the practitioner may use a source document other than bank 
.statements when selecting the deposit dates jiir testing, such as a cash collection log. daily revenue 
report. receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and. 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 

it. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip 

No evceptions noted. 

Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No evceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements. and petty cash 
purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less. than 
5). 

Obtained hsting of locations that process paments and nwnagement's representation that listing 
is complete. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order or making the purchase; 

No evceptions noted. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

No exceptions noted. 



The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from addingimodifying 
vendor files. unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor tiles; 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Either the employee:official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Only employees:officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

No exceptions ?Wed 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, ohtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, 
obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and 

i. Observe whether the disbursement. whether by paper or electronic means. matched the 
related original itenuzed invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables 
included on the invoice were received by the entity, and 

No evceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initialidate, 
electronic lo2ging) of segre2ation of duties tested under procedure #5B ahove. as 
applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic 
disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by 
only those persons authorized to disburse fiinds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) 
approved by the required nurnber of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic 
payments were made from the main operating account during the month seleeted the practitioner 
should select an alternative month and'or account for testing that does include electronic 
disbursements. 

No exceptions noted. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit CaNIVFuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period. including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the 
listing is complete. 

Obtained listing of the credit cards. and management's representation that listing ts complete 



B. Using the listing prepared by management, ramkimly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement 
for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly hank statement) ()btain supporting 
documentation, and 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts tbr creditidebit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved. in writing (or 
electronically approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder those instances 
requiring such approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, 
such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported): and 

No exceptions noted. 

h) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, 
excluding, fuel cards,  randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
staternent, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g.. each card should have 
10 transactions subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1 ) an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation 
of the businesspublic purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals abr 
meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the 
transaction and observe whether management had a compensating control to address missing 
receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement-  that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

No exceptions noted. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement fbrms prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected reiinbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. 
For each of the 5 reimbursements selected 

Obtained listing of travel and related expense reimbursements and management's repmentation 
that listing iS compkte. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. Cieneral Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov); 

Two cf the five reimbursements used a per diem rate that was more than tho.se rates 
esuthhshed either by the State of Louisiana or the L.:S. Genei-al Service.s Admini.stratwn. 

Managements response. Management used a rate that was approved based on the written 
policy. That rate will be changed in rhe policy to reflect the rates established either by the 
State of Louisiana or U.S. General Services Administration. 



ii. If reimbursed using actual costs. ohserve that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

• excephons noted. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business.public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and 
Procedures procedure #1A(vii); and 

No exceptions noted 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approx. ed. in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted 

(antracts 

A. Obtain from management a hsting of all agreementsfcontracts for professional services. materials 
and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal 
period. Alternatively. the practaioner mar use an equivalent select:on source. such as an active 
vendor list ()btain management's representation that the listing is cotnplete. Randonily select 5 
contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing. excluding the practitioner's contract, and 

Obtained listing of contracts initiated or renowd during the fiscal period (ma management's 
representation that listing is complete. 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 

Not aliplicable. 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing bodyboard, if required by 
ilolicy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

Not applicable. 

iii. If the contract was amended (e.g , change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e g., if approval is required for any amendment, the documented approval); 
and 

Not applicable. 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain tlie 
supporting invoice, auree the invoice to the contract terms, and ohserve that the invoice 
and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

No e.xceptions noted. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. ()btain a listing of employers and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, ohtain related 



paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries:pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

Obtained of employees and management's representation that listing was complete. Agived 
paid salaries to authorized salaries.pay rotes in the personnel file without exception. 

B. Randomlv select one pay period dunng the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above. obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, 
and 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., ‘acation. sick, compensatory): 

Salaried employees are not required to document their attendance. The hourly employees 
documented attendance. Leave was doctunentedlisr all employees 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendanee and leave of the selected employees 
or officials: 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in thc entity's 
cumulative leave records: and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary pay rate 
found within the personnel file. 

No exceptions noted. 

C . Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
penod and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees 
or officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's 
termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours 
to the employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or 
official's authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the 
termination payment to entity policy. 

Obtained listing qf terminated employees and management's repwsentation that listing was 
complete. No exceptions noted. 

I). ()btain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g.. payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums. 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated fonns 
have been filed, by required deadlines. 

No exceptions noted. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees:officials from Payroll .ind Personnel procedure ,--9A 
obtain ethics documentation from management. and 

i. Obserw whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee official completed 
one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170: and 



No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the 
fiscal period, as applicable. 

No evceptions noted. 

23. Inquire and-or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 

No exceptions noted. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listuig of bonds!notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt mstniments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was ohtained 
for each debt instrument issued as required hy Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Not applicable. 

B. Obtain a listing of bondsinotes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listine is complete. Randomly select one bondinote, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by deht covenants (including contingency funds, short-
lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Not applicable. 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of puhlic funds and assets during the tiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropnation(s) to the legislative auditor and the distnct attorney of the palish in which the 
entity is domiciled as required hy R.S. 24:523. 

Manage:new asserted that the entity did not have any misappropriations of public funds or assets. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24.523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds 

No evceptions noted. 

13) Information Technologr Disaster RecoreWBusiness Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report 
"We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical 
data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing 



up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, 
(b) was not stored on the government's local server or network. and (c) was encrypted. 

We peribrined the procedure and discusved the results with management. 

ii. Ohtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested;verified that its 
backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation. then inquire of personnel 
responsible for testingNerifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test:verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We perf0rmed the procedure and discusved the results with management. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers 
and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and 
active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in 
use are currently supported by the vendor 

ireperPrined the procedure and thscussed the results with management. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list 
of terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the selected terminated 
employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

Ife perfinmed the pwcedure and dtscussed the results with management. 

C. Randomly selected 5 employees from Payroll and Personnel and obtained cyber securitv training 
documentation from management. and observed that the documentation demonstrates that the 
following employees with access to the agency's information technology has completed cyher 
security training as required. 

petformed the procedure and discussed the results mai management 

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees:Officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure g9A, 
ohtain sexual harassment training documentation from management. and observe that the 
documentation demonstrates each employeeofficial completed at least one hour of sexual 
harassment training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

No exceptions noted. 

B. Observe that the entitv has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

No exceptions noted. 

C . Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the 
report was dated on or before February l , and observe that the report includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344: 



i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

No exceptions noted. 

11. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptions noted. 

We were engaged by City of Gonzales to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of City of Gonzales and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Gonzales, Louisiana 
October 25, 2024 
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